Public Document Pack

QSwaIe

BOROUGH COUNCIL

AGENDA
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MEETING

Date: Friday, 22 June 2018
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT

Membership:
Councillors Cameron Beart, Tina Booth and Paul Fleming.

Quorum =3

1. Fire Evacuation Procedure

The Chairman will advise the meeting of the evacuation procedures to
follow in the event of an emergency. This is particularly important for
visitors and members of the public who will be unfamiliar with the building
and procedures.

The Chairman will inform the meeting whether there is a planned
evacuation drill due to take place, what the alarm sounds like (i.e. ringing
bells), where the closest emergency exit route is, and where the second
closest emergency exit route is, in the event that the closest exit or route
is blocked.

The Chairman will inform the meeting that:

(a) in the event of the alarm sounding, everybody must leave the building
via the nearest safe available exit and gather at the Assembly points at
the far side of the Car Park. Nobody must leave the assembly point until
everybody can be accounted for and nobody must return to the building
until the Chairman has informed them that it is safe to do so; and

(b) the lifts must not be used in the event of an evacuation.

Any officers present at the meeting will aid with the evacuation.

It is important that the Chairman is informed of any person attending who
is disabled or unable to use the stairs, so that suitable arrangements may
be made in the event of an emergency.

2. Notification of Chairman and Outline of Procedure

3. Declarations of Interest



Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or
other material benefits for themselves or their spouse, civil partner or
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner. They
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships.

The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in
respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings:

(@) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act
2011. The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be
declared. After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and
not take part in the discussion or vote. This applies even if there is
provision for public speaking.

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct
adopted by the Council in May 2012. The nature as well as the existence
of any such interest must be declared. After declaring a DNPI interest,
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter.

(c) Where it is possible that a fair-minded and informed observer,
having considered the facts would conclude that there was a real
possibility that the Member might be predetermined or biased the
Member should declare their predetermination or bias and then leave the
room while that item is considered.

Advice to Members: If any Councillor has any doubt about the
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Monitoring
Officer, the Head of Legal or from other Solicitors in Legal Services as
early as possible, and in advance of the Meeting.

New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003

To consider an application for Monks Hill Farm Showground, Monkshill
Road, Faversham, Kent ME13 9EH.

Issued on Tuesday, 12 June 2018

The reports included in Part | of this agenda can be
made available in alternative formats. For further
information about this service, or to arrange for special

facilities to be provided at the meeting, please contact
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find
out more about the work of this Committee, please visit

1-132

Pages

www.swale.gov.uk

Chief Executive, Swale Borough Council,Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne,
Kent, ME10 3HT



Agenda Item 4

Swale Borough Council
Report to: Licensing Sub — Committee (Under the Licensing Act 2003)
Date: 22 June 2018 at 14:00
Report Author: Christina Hills — Licensing Officer

Subject: Monks Hills Farm Showground, Monkshill Road, Faversham, Kent ME13
9EH

Purpose and summary of report:

To consider an application, to which representations have been made, for a new Premises
Licence application under the Licensing Act 2003 — application reference number
FAV/SWALE/189/0689

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to determine the application and decide whether to grant a licence.
Members asked to consider the application on its merits.

Background papers: The Licensing Act 2003
DCMS Guidance Documents issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 as amended
Swale Borough Council Statement of Licensing Policy

Contacts: Christina Hills, Licensing Officer
Email: chrishills@swale.gov.uk
Telephone: 01795 417737

The Licensing Act 2003 Act requires the Council to publish a ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’
that sets out the policies the Council will generally apply to promote the licensing objectives
when making a decision on applications made under the Act. The Policy will be available at
the meeting for reference purposes.

Under the 2003 Act, it is the duty of all licensing authorities that, in carrying out their
functions, they must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section
182. The Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of circumstances that
may arise. Provided that the licensing authority has properly understood and considered the
Guidance, it may depart from it when it has reason to do so. However, as the licensing
authority is under a duty to have regard to the Guidance, it will need to give full reasons for
its departure from it. This would be a key consideration for the courts should departure from
the Guidance result in a determination which gives rise to an appeal or judicial review.
Should the need arise the Guidance will be available at the meeting for reference purposes.

The Licensing Authority must, under the Act refer any application for hearing to the Licensing
Panel, if relevant representations are made by a responsible authority or other person.

A copy of the Council’s approved procedure for hearings of the Panel in relation to an
application, along with a copy of the Hearings Regulations has been circulated to all parties
prior to the meeting.

Page 1


mailto:chrishills@swale.gov.uk

Report Title: Monks Hill Farm Showground, Monkshill Road, Faversham, Kent ME13
9EH

Application for: A Premises Licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
Purpose of the report:

The report advises Members of an application for a Premises Licence to be granted under
the Licensing Act 2003, made by Mr. Dave Whiteoak, in respect of land and premises at
Monks Hill Farm Showground, Monkshill Road, Faversham (Appendices A,B,C, and D) in
respect of which sixteen(16) representations (Appendix E) have been received from
members of the public, these representations also include 2 received from Graveney with
Goodnestone Parish Council and Hernhill Parish Council.

Environmental Health have objected to the application (Appendix F) but if the Panel are
minded to grant the application they have requested that additional conditions are imposed
on the granted licence which are also detailed in the appendix.

The Police Licensing Team have objected to the application (Appendix G) but if the Panel
are minded to grant the application they have requested that additional conditions are
imposed on the granted licence which are also detailed in the appendix.

1. Issues to be decided

Members are asked to determine whether to:

(i) grant a licence subject to conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule modified
to such an extent as considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives and any mandatory conditions,

(i) grant a licence but excluding any of the licensable activities applied for,

(iii) grant a licence but refusing to specify a premises supervisor,

(iv) reject the application.

2. Background

The Licensing Act requires the Council as licensing authority to carry out its various licensing
functions so as to promote the following four licensing objectives:

(i the prevention of crime and disorder;
(ii the protection of public safety;

( the prevention of public nuisance;

( the protection of children from harm

3. The Application

3.1 On 3 April 2018 an application was fully complete, from Mr Dave Whiteoak for the
grant of a Premises Licence under section17 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of
land and premises at Monks Hill Farm Showground, Monkshill Road, Faversham.
Kent ME13 9EH. The application is for the provisions of regulated entertainment and
the supply of alcohol. The proposed hours of the licensable activities are as follows:

2
Page 2



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.6.1

Provision of Films

Thursday — Friday 18:00 — 00:00
Saturday — Sunday 12:00 — 00:00

Provision of Recorded Music and Provision of Performance of Dance

Friday 15:00 — 00:00
Saturday 12:00 — 00:00
Sunday 12:00 — 23:00

Late Night Refreshment

Monday — Saturday 12:00 — 00:00

Supply of Alcohol

Monday — Saturday 12:00 — 00:00
Sunday 12:00 — 23:00

Opening hours

Monday — Saturday 12:00 — 00:00
Sunday 12:00 — 23:00

A copy of the application, which includes the operating schedule that details the
steps the applicant intends to take to address the licensing objectives is shown at
Appendix A.

The applicant also submitted an Information Pack, a Venue Safety Management Plan
and a Health and Safety Policy in support of his application and these are shown as
Appendices B, C and D.

The application was correctly advertised in the local press (Kent Messenger 16 April
2018). With regards to the blue notice that is required by law to be posted at the
premises and, in the case of land, to be posted every 50 metres along the perimeter
of the site that abuts a public highway. When licensing officers visited to confirm that
they had been correctly posted they were not satisfied that this requirement had been
correctly adhered to and, as a consequence the 28 day consultation period was re-
started. Further visits to the premises by licensing officers confirmed that the blue
notice had been correctly displayed for the whole of the consultation period that
ended on 24t May 2018.

The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor has not been named to date.

Representations

Representations from responsible authorities:

¢ Kent and Medway Fire & Rescue Service — No representations
o Kent County Council Trading Standards — No representations
e Kent County Council Services Children and Families — No representations

3

Page 3



e Kent County Council Public Health — No representations

e Environmental Health — Object to the application but if the Sub-Committee is
minded to grant a Premises Licence would request that additional conditions be
imposed on the Licence. The grounds for the objection and the possible
additional conditions are shown at Appendix F.

o Kent Police — Object to the application but if the Sub-Committee is minded to
grant a Premises Licence would request that additional conditions be imposed on
the Licence. The grounds for the objection and the possible additional conditions
are shown at Appendix G.

3.6.2 There have been (16) representations from members of the public. These
representations include 2 received from Graveney with Goodnestone Parish Council
and Hernhill Parish Council. These are shown at Appendix E.

Responsible Licensing Associated Appendix
Authority / Other Objective Documents
person
Members of the Public Nuisance (16) letters E
Public Public Safety

Crime and Disorder

Protection of
Children from Harm

4. Policy Considerations
The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s Guidance apply to this application:
Chapter 2 — The licensing objectives
Chapter 8 — Applications for premises licences
Chapter 9 — Determining applications
Chapter 10 — Conditions attached to Premises Licences

The following paragraphs of the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy apply to this
application:

Sections 2.1 to 2.4 — These sections set out the Council’'s approach with regard to
licensing and details other mechanisms to deal with potential problems.

Section 1.1 to 1.4 — These sections set out the four licensing objectives and identifies
matters that may be relevant to the promotion of each licensing objective.

5. Determining the application — Options of the Panel

The Panel must, when reaching a decision on the outcome of the application, take into
account the licensing objectives. Having had proper regard to the matters above the

Panel may:
(i) Grant the licence application as applied for;
(i) Modify the activities or conditions proposed or add any new conditions;

4
Page 4



5.1

10.

(iii) Refuse to specify a person in the licence as designated premises supervisor
(iv) Reject the whole or part of the application

Members of the Licensing Act 2003 — Licensing Sub — Committee are reminded of heir
duty under the Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1989 to consider the crime and
disorder implications of their decisions and the Licensing Authority’s responsibility to
co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the Borough.

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states:

“Without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of each
authority to which this section applies to exercise its various functions with due regard to
the likely effect of the exercise of those function on, and the needto do all  thatis
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area”.

Implications Assessment

The decision should be made with regard to the Secretary of the State’s guidance and
the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003. Where the
decision departs from either the Guidance or the Policy clear and cogent reasons must
be given. Members should be aware that if such a departure is made the risk of appeal /
challenge is increased.

Human Rights

While all Convention Rights must be considered, those which are of particular relevance
to the application are:

e Atrticle 8 — Right to respect for private and family life.
e Article 1 of the First Protocol — Protection of Property
e Article 6(1) — Right to a fair hearing.

e Article 10 — Freedom of Expression
Recommendations

Members must ensure that the application is considered on its merits, as well as against
the relevant guidance, policy and statutory framework.

List of Appendices

Appendix A — Application form and plan of premises

Appendix B — Information Pack submitted by applicant

Appendix C — Venue Safety Management Plan submitted by applicant
Appendix D — Health and Safety Policy submitted by applicant
Appendix E — Representations

Appendix F - Objection by Environmental Health

Appendix G — Objection from Kent Police Licensing

Appendix H - Order of proceedings

Appeals

The applicant or any other person (objector) may appeal the Licensing Act 2003 Sub
5

Page 5



Committee’s decision within 21 days beginning with the day on which the Appellant is
notified. All/any appeals must be lodged with the Magistrates’ Court. Parties should be
aware that they MAY incur an Adverse Cost Order should they bring an appeal

Page 6



& Swale

Swale
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@swale.gov.uk
Telephone: 1795417364

e ———
. *required information

You can save the form at any time and resume it fater. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference

Your reference

Not Currently In Use

Monks Hill Show Ground

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

O Yes ® No
Applicant Details
* First name [Dave
* Family name lWhiteoak

* E-mail
Main telephone number

Other telephone number

[71 Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

> Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

Registration number

Business name

VAT number -

Legal status

@ Yes C No

6627901

Video lllusions LTD

e

Pub(ic Limit__e_d Company

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means you are
applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Page 7

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2002



Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business  [Director ‘

ARty IUV_?i_t_?-‘_d Kingdom i ;Eiiic;t::it?{o\::gg‘the headquarters of your
Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.
Building number or name [Unit 6B Hillsboro Business Park I |
Street ISweechbridge Road |
District I 7 7 I
City or town lHerne Bay |

|

County or administrative area [Kent _

Postcode ICT66TE _

Country IUnited_ Kingdom l

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
{s: Address (> OS map reference (& Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name  [Monks Hill Farm |
Street IMonkshill Rd |
District | o ]
City or town [ |

|

County or administrative area IFaversham___

Postcode [ME13 9EH

Country lUnited Kingdom |

Further Details

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£) iO |

Page 8

© Queen's Frinter and Controller ef HMSO 2009



APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?

57 Anindividual or individuals

A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)

An unincorporated association

Other (for example a statutory corporation)

0 O O I O O O

A recognised club
A charity
The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

O O 00

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Soclal Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity {within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

a

[[] The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales
Confirm The Following

) I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
“> the use of the premises for licensable activities

[7 Fam making the application pursuant to a statutory function

| am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS

Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to} the details given in section one?

® Yes C No
First name lDave _ J
Family name 'Whitecvak

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?

(® Yes  No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Page 9

© Queeny's Printer and Controller of HMSC 2009



Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address

Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one? If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
) Yes ) No required. Select "No” to enter a completely

new set of details.

Building number or name

Street

District

City or town

m |

County or administrative area

Postcode

Country lU_nited Kingdom

Applicant Contact Details

Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?  [f “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

(e Yes

E-mail

¥ No
Telephone number RN
. n

Other telephone number

* Date of birth

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to

* Nationality lﬁr_'_tl-‘_‘h work in the UK

OPERATING SCHEDULE

Whend tth
presnr}se(zl);?:n?:?o staert? I 01 ‘ / t_06 ‘ / i 2018 l

dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period, ] ‘ / | ( / ! |
when do you want it to end dd g

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

At present the property is a beautiful plot built up of disused farmland purchased by Guy Botting (Landlord) based in
Page 10

O Quean's Printer and Controlier of HMS0 200¢



Continued from previous page...

Dargate just out side Faversham , My self "Dave Whiteoak and my business partners are in process of starting an events
management company and looking to run events at Monks hill farm with Guy Botting and convert the plot into an event
space and show ground,

Monks Hill Showground is a 60-acre, 8,000 capacity site positioned between Faversham and Whitstable in the

heart of Kent. the event space will be available with basic facilities catered for, including the

provision of potable water and basic electrical supply. The showground will be run by Video llfusions Ltd in

partnership with the land owner, and boasts a farm shop, restaurant and up-coming glamping pods alongside, a wedding
venue and beautiful lake with a country setting and 8 large fields of proposed events space with a huge amount of space
for parking and off street entrance access for vehicles attending any event preventing any road blocks on busier events.
We are lcoking to use the space for events such as classic car shows / folk festivals / horse shows / private events / drive in
cinema/ weddings / regulated live music events with stages, bar areas and chill out zones.

The bar areas will be contained in the event space in the bottom fields with SIA registered security and site safety managers
on site at all times.

As discussed with Swale council at Swale house we have dedicated the larger event to be seasonal and will be held within
the months of June / July and August

The rest of the year will be smaller more contained private events with lower capacity.

If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the

premises at any one time, 8000

state the number expected to

Se
PROVISION OF PLAYS
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing plays?

O Yes @® No

PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing films?

& Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY ; :
Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start l:‘ End ::l (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start End ‘:I to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY

Page 11

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY
Start |:::] End I:::j
Start [:I End :]
THURSDAY
Start End
Start [: End I:j
FRIDAY
Start [18:00 End
sart | end [
SATURDAY
Start End
so [ ] ma [ ]
SUNDAY
Start -
sart [ End [ |
Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or cutdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
¢ Indoors (O Outdoors (& Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Open Air Drive in Cinema , audio on FM transmitter

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of film

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer menths.

June / July / August Only

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the exhibition of film at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example {but not exclusively}, where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve,

Christmas / Fireworks night / Easter / St Patricks Days etc

Page 12

@ Queen's Printer and Controfier of HMSQ 200%



Continued from previous page...

A i

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?
: Yes ® No
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

O Yes ® No

'PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing live music?

® Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MQNDSY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start :::I End ‘:j (e.g., 16:00) and only gi‘ve detailsforthg days
sart [ ] tnd [ | tobevsedtorhesctuty,
TUESDAY
Start E: End ::]
Start [:i End l::!
WEDNESDAY
Start | End [:
Start End _
THURSDAY
Start ::I End [:j
Start l::::l End i::l
FRIDAY
Start End
Start Ej End [:b
SATURDAY
Start End
Start l::l End :!

Page 13

& Queen's Printer and Controller of BMS0 2009



Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY
Start [12:00 End
Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
 Indoors C  Outdoors (& Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Live amplified music such as bands / dj's / commentators

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

The events are planned to run in the 2 bottom fields the main event space will be located by the lake used as a VIP area

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of live music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively}, where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Fireworks night events and Halloween fright nights could potentially fall on a week day

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing recorded music?

® Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY o
Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End [:| (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start End to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY

Start

JIpll

Start

Page 14

© Queen's Printer and Conlrolier of HMSC 2009



Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY
THURSDAY
Start l:j End I:
FRIDAY
Start End
SATURDAY
Start End
Start :l End l::
SUNDAY
Start End
Start || Bnd [

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both? ~ Where taking place in a building or other
‘ structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
) Indoors (& Outdoors (&5 Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Amplified music such as bands / dj's / commentators

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

The events are planned to run in the 2 bottom fields the main event space will be located by the lake used as a VP area

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Fireworks night events and Halloween fright nights could potentially fall on a week day

sl oy " 1
+= =S

@ Queen's Printer and Controlier of HMS0 2009



Continued from previous page..

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will you be providing performances of dance?

@ Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start L__:I End [:j {e.g., 16:00) and only gi.ve detai!sforthg days
st | tnd [ tobeusedforthesctiity
TUESDAY
Start Ij End [::
Start ‘: End :]
WEDNESDAY
Start [::j End [:j
stat [ | end [ ]
THURSDAY
st [ ] end [
stat [ | end [ ]
FRIDAY
Start End
Start I: End [::I
SATURDAY
Start End fooo0 |
Start E: End i:l
SUNDAY
Start End
Start :I End I:
will the performance of dance take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
3 Indoors > Outdoors (& Both include a tent. -

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Page 16

€ Ouzen's Brinter and Controller of HMS0 2009



Continued from previous page...

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of dance at different times from those listed in
the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

b
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

C Yes & No

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment?

® Yes O No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.

Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only g{ve detailsforthe:‘ days

Y — Y S [
TUESDAY

Start End

start [ | end [ ]
WEDNESDAY

Start End

Start l:l End

Page 17

© Queen's Printer and Controtler of HMSQ 2009



Continued from previous page...

THURSDAY
Start End
Start [ Bnd [ |
FRIDAY
Start End
start [ Bd [ |
SATURDAY
Start End
Start |::| End
SUNDAY
Start [12:00 |
Start l::|

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or
both?

> Indoors (3 Outdoors (& Both Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of late night refreshments at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively}, where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve,

D Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?

(s) Yes O No
Standard Days And Timings

CIRAY _ _ Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End {e.g., 16:00} and only gi.ve details for thg days
sart [ ] L [
TUESDAY
Start End
set [ end [ ]
WEDNESDAY
Star End
Start l: End [:l
THURSDAY
Start End
start [ ] ed [ |
FRIDAY
Start End
Start [:I End [:I
SATURDAY
Start @ End
Start [:l End I:
SUNDAY
Start End
Start [::] End E:
Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption: I the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
{3 Onthe premises ( Off the premises (& Both is for consumption away from the premises

select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

In the on site bat / restaurant and at the planned events

Dagp1q

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HM30 2009



Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Fireworks nights / halloween events / winter gardens /

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisar

Name

First name

Family hame

Date of birth

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name

Street

District
City or town
County or administrative area

Postcode

Country i_Uﬂ_itEd Kingdom o ‘

Personal Licence number
{if known)

Issuing ficensing authority
{if known) L

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

(s; Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

C: Asanattachment to this application

Reference number for consent
form (if known)

Page 20

@ Quesn's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

If the consent form is already submitted, ask
the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference’ or 'your
reference’,

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

None of the above are planned to happen during any of our events

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUB

Standard Days And Timings

NONRAL Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (9., 16:00) and only give detalls for the days
sart [ o [ | b,
TUESDAY
WEDNESDAY
THURSDAY
Start End
Start || End [
FRIDAY
Start End
SATURDAY
Start [: End :I
Page 21

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMS0 2009



Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

Events are planned to take place in the event space in the lower fields , it will only be seasonal for the larger events June /
July / August and smaller / private events March / April May and September / October / November

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a} General — all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

TO PROMOTE ALL FOUR LICENSING OBJECTIVES WE WILL KEEP:

Strong management controls and effective training of all staff so that they are aware of the premises license and the
requirements to meet the four licensing objectives with particular attention to:

1/ no selling of alcohol to underage people

2/ the prevention of crime and disorder

3/ no violent and anti-social behavior

4/no harm to children

- Qperating Schedule providing the hours of operation and licensable activities during those hours.

- Designated event supervisor confirmed it is obligated to be in day-to-day control of the premises, to provide good
training for staff on the Licensing Act (Training Record), to make or authorise each sale

- Clear "Challenge 25" information to prevent the supply of alcohol to under-age drinkers.

- CCTV system installed across the site with recording option available

As a licensed premises we know that it is necessary to carry out our functions or operate the events with a purpose of

promoting these objectives. We stand by our word and will support these objectives through their operating schedules and
other measures

(including staff training and qualifications, policies, and strategic partnerships with other agencies).

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Effective communication is established and maintained between Video lllusions Ltd, the External Event Producer and
relevant local authorities to ensure a positive action program for combating crime and disorderis in place. All security

Page 22

© Queen’s Printer and Controlier of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

personnel operating will be SiA registered.

The Challenge 25/Think 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated on the event site at all times. All customers who appear
under the age of 25 will be challenged to prove that they are over 18 when attempting to purchase alcohol. Acceptable
forms of ID include a photo driving license, passport, or home office approved identity card baring the holographic ‘PASS’
mark. If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce an acceptable form of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol
shall be made to or for that person.

All staff working on a bar or other outlet selling alcohol at the event shall be trained in the law about the sale of alcohol
and must be over 18. Such training will include challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of age and to
refuse service where individuals cannot produce acceptable means of identification, acceptable forms of ID and using the
refusal log / register.

A refusals log / register will be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to the Police or an
"authorised person”. The log will record all refused sales of alcohol and include the following:

- the Identity of the member of staff who refused the sale;

- the date and time of the refusal;

« the alcohol requested and reason for refusal;

- description of the person refused alcohol

¢) Public safety

Public Safety

The safety of the public is the premises license holders number one priority. In addition, Video lllusions Ltd will liaise
directly with individual Agencies should this be appropriate. The venue plans have, and event plans must, be developed to
meet guidance under the Event Safety Guide (HSG 195) and Managing Crowds Safely (HSG154).

Internal and external lighting fixed to promote the public safety objective.

Well trained staff adherence to environmental health requirements.

Training and implementation of underage ID checks.

A log book or recording system shall be kept upon the premises in which shall be entered particulars of inspections made;
those required to be made by statute, and information compiled to comply with any public safety condition attached to the
premises license that requires the recording of such information. The log book shall be kept available for inspection when
required by persons authorised by the Licensing Act 2003 or associated legislation.

All parts of the premises including all gate entrances, all fittings and apparatus therein, door hinges and notices, lighting,
heating, electrical, air condition, sanitary accommodation and other installations, will be maintained at all times in good
order and in a safe condition.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

Prevention of public nuisance

It is Video lllusion Ltd’s intention to cause minimal nuisance to local residents as a result of any event. However, the arrival
of several thousand people onto a rural site does have the potential for disruption, in particular noise, Video lllusions Ltd
will work with the council, venue and local residents to ensure appropriate noise control levels are put into place so as to
minimise noise leakage and nuisance to neighbouring properties.

CCTV System installed to monitor entrances, exits, and other parts of the premises in order to address the prevention of
crime objective.

A clear and legible notice outside the premises indicating the normal hours under the terms of the premises licence during
which licensable activities are permitted.

Clear and conspicuous notices warning of potential criminal activity, such as theft, that may target customers wilf be
displayed.

Non selling of alcohol to drunk or intoxicated customers.

Custom will not be sought by means of personal solicitation outside or in the vicinity of the premises.

Prevention and vigilance in illegal drug use at the retail unit area.

Staff will be well trained in asking customers to use premises in an orderly and respectful manner

e) The protection of children from harm

"Challenge 25" sign which is a strategy that encourages anyone who is over 18 but looks under 25 to carry
acceptable ID (a card bearing the PASS hologram, a photographic driving license or a passport) if they wish to buy alcohol.
Well trained staff about requirement for persons' identificatipnpzqgedbelishment etc.

~J

@ Queen's Printar and Controller of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

All'the details providedin Training Record Book will be available in the site office at all times.

Log Book will be kept upon the premises all the time.

Policy on clearing glasses to minimise opportunities for children to access left-over alcohol

Have a clear policy for dealing with children on the premises, e.g. age, thresholds, supervision, expectations of adults,
timings, etc

Staff should be easily identifiable (uniform or badge) and aware of safeguarding issues

NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 24

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:

° does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
° is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK,

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the following documents (which do not need to be certified).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

. An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copyl.

@ An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

® A Reglstration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national

of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
o A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the famlily member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

o A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

] A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.
® A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement

indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

s A full birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK which includes the name(s) of at least one of the holder's
parents or adoptive parents, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person'’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

o A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

® A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Goverhment agency or a previous employer.

® A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

Page 25

@ Queent's Printer and Controlier of HMSO 2002




Continued from previous page...

° A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

. A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence,

8 A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder

with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

. A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 17(3) or 18A
(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2006, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

° Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
' with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number,

® Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,
evidence of theit relationship with the European Economic Area family member - e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and

° evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK oris one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
0] working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(i self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(i) studying e.qg. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an $1, 2 or $3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:-

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(ii) any page containing the holder's photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder's signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work. '

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 26

@ Queen's Printer and Controfter of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500,

Films: no licence s required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts - are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a} the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (i) a school, or (jii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent forthe performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authorlty concerned, or (i) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or {iii) a hospital, provided that {a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (i) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 27

© Queen's Printar and Centrotler of HMSO 2009




Continued from previous page...

s Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

° Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

0 any entertalnment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;

0 any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o) any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00
Band C - £33001 to £8700 £315.00
Band D - £87001 to £12500 £450.00*
Band E- £125001 and over £635.00%

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £87001 to £12500 £900.00
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or coliege.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time

Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29995 £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-45999 £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Page 28

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2609



Continued from previous page...

Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00
* Fee amount (£} 1,000.00
ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS

Address

Building number or name

Street

1
|
District |
I

City or town

T

County or administrative area ’

Postcode I

Country IUnited Kingdom

DECLARATION

. 1/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

] Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name I _ ’

* Capacity | I

Date (dd/mm/yyyy) [ - _ f

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/swale/apply-1 to upload this file and continue with
your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

ITIS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS ASTO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

Page 29

© Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 30



MonksHill
Showground

Monkshi

Manishilead:

Page 31

Created by Theo Smith | Issued 05.11.2017 | Version 1




|

Page 32



Map 2: Off-Site Access Roads

MonksHill Monkshill Road, Faversham
Showground ME13 9EH

All Saifits Churchies
Graveney]

L<n:n.<.ﬂ:ﬁ E

Primary S

Rie'nsitnod e

Denstro

i

minimal nuisance to the local
community as well as safe turning
options, The use of mul

raffic can

free-flowing and the

sign-posting and traffic marshalls
ensure guests and locals receive
clear indication of events and
procedures.

Created by Theo Smith | Issued 05.11.2017 | Version 1




Page 34



Map 3: Site Mains Water Distribution ‘

Monkshill Road, Faversham |

MonksHiill ME13 9EH
Showground

e T e e A e e e e e T R T T T

A B C D 1 J K

= Monkshill Road
Monksh

= - 50mm MDPE Blue Mains Water Pipe - Stand Pipe
——— - 25mm MDPE Blue Mains Water Ripe - Isolation Valve
Page 35@

Created by Theo Smith | Issued 05.11.2017 | Version 1




Page 36



Showground

Information Pack

Page 37

MonksHill



Page 38



Information Pack | MonksHill Showground

1. Quick Start
a. Background
b. Venue Address

c. Local Map

d. Contact Details
2. Access

a. Site Map

b. Vehicles on Site
¢. Evacuation Procedures

d. LoadIn
3. Facilities
a. Spaces: Fields 1-8
b. Electricity
c. Water
d. Refuse
e. Parking
f. Storage
g. Toilets
4. Event Compliance (Site Rules)
a. Health & Safety
b. Traffic Management
¢. Medical
d. Security
e. Toilets
f. Waste
g. Inflatables
h. Fairgrounds

Pyrotechnics/CO2/Lasers
Licensing

[S—

This document is intended as a guide for minimum compliance that must be exceeded. It forms part of the
External Event Producer (EEP)’s agreement with the venue as condition of hire. Failure to follow the guidelines
outlined in this document will result in forfeit of the hire period without refund.

For the purpose of this document, the External Events Producer is the Hirer.

Created by Theo Smith | Bsaré gsslgdgﬂu/lm? 2



Page 40



Information Pack | MonksHill Showground

ke

Background

Monks Hill Showground is a 60-acre, 9,999 capacity site positioned between Faversham and Whitstable in the
heart of Kent. It is available for dry hire to event organisers with basic facilities catered for, including the
provision of potable water and basic electrical supply. The showground is run by Video lllusions Ltd in
partnership with the land owners, and boasts a farm shop, restaurant and up-coming glamping pods alongside
8 large fields of events space.

Venue Address
The venue address is “Monkshill Showground, Monkshill Road, Faversham, ME13 9EH” and it is situated in the
district of Swale in the county of Kent. The local council is Swale Borough Council.

GPS:51.327212, 0.960386

Local Map
! AP Travelodge
Monkehil Farm el P Canterbury Whitstable ™ V"fp
o e N ®o
Highsire
s
© Mallards F: i
allards Farm
Four Horseshoes Park ¥ *‘é&
o @ The Freewheel E

~ Pub / Cycling Cafe

b4 4

X
"
‘s
f Dargare
e
«
Bup)
#29 Hemhill COf€ oy
Pnmary School
é‘*‘“\
&
He

Contact Details

Venue / Site Manager: Dave Whiteoak, 07834455663, dave @videoillusions.net

Created by Theo Smith |F,|§?glélss¢103/11/2017 3



Page 42



Information Pack | MonksHill Showground

Site Map
A , B C D E F G H B J K

Monkshill Road

\
Monksh*! Road

|

Vehicles on Site

There are roads surrounding each field which are suitable for heavy goods vehicles. Vehicles will stay on the
roads wherever possible and will not drive above Smph when in the events spaces. Vehicles will have their
dipped headlights on at all times when the engine is running while on site. Vehicles will not use hazard lights
and will indicate whenever changing direction.

Created by Theo Smith | pgﬁ éﬁﬁ@f&/llﬂﬁl? 4



Page 44



Information Pack | MonksHill Showground
e

Evacuation Procedures

All event management plans should follow the above evacuation routes to ensure continuity. It is expected
that the EEP will choose one of the two muster points for their event and provisions must be made to ensure
the central access road marked as the Emergency Blue Route is kept clear at all times.

|
Monkshifi Road
|

@ - Emergency Blue Route
« - Evacuation Route

Load-in

The External Event Producer will provide a build schedule to the venue management team prior to work
commencing on site. This will include the expected delivery windows for all contractors and logistics teams
and will ensure there is a steady flow of deliveries (rather than all arriving at once).

Created by Theo Smith | pg@ éssﬁq\-_)ea/u/zou 5



Page 46



Information Pack | MonksHill Showground

Spaces: Fields 1 -8

The showground is divided up into 8 main spaces, or fields (see venue map at the beginning of this document).
Depending on the External Event Producers requirements, they may be hiring one or up to all of these event
spaces. There may be other external event producers using other areas of the site simultaneously and so
consideration should be made for adequate signage for deliveries and contractors to your area of the site to
avoid any failed or incorrect deliveries.

Electricity

There is a small provision of electricity on site. Any persons attempting to attach to the venue electrical supply
and energize it are expected to evidence a temporary power test and commission by a suitably qualified and
experienced electrician. It is the responsibility of the External Event Producer to organise the inspection,
testing and commission of all temporary electrical installations on site and to submit a power plan with loading
calculations to the venue as part of their planning paperwork submission to the venue.

Created by Theo Smith | Vpiadésua 9?/11/2017 6



Page 48



Information Pack | MonksHill Showground

MonksHill

M ili
Medical
The venue has their own first aider when their staff are on site. The External Event Producer must provide a

justified and evidenced provision of first aid for all aspects of their event and hire.

The nearest hospital is Kent & Canterbury Hospital, Ethelbert Road, Canterbury CT1 3NG

Security
It is the responsibility of the external events organiser to ensure that their event continues in a safe and

structured manner which aligns with the licensing objectives laid out by the local council. The security
contractors supplied by the External Event Producer are expected to reference the licensing objectives within
their crowd management plan as well as justification on numbers of stewards and SIA personnel. The crowd
management plan must be submitted to the venue prior to the commencement of any work on site by the

hirer.

Toilets

The External Event Producer must show evidence of appropriate amounts of toilet and sanitation facilities for
the expected amount of people at their event and during their build / break-down. For guidance figures,
please consult The Purple Guide, the event safety guide. The venue does not have a provision of toilets
suitable for event contractors to use and so it must be assumed there are no facilities available on site. Failure
to provide adequate sanitation facilities for your event will result in the ceasing of the event until adequate
provision is provided. This will be at the discretion of the venue management team.

Waste

The External Event Producer (EEP) will remove all waste and make good the event site they have used, as well

as the immediate surrounding areas if they have been affected by the event. The EEP will ensure there is

Adequate temporary storage for refuse and it is unacceptable for rubbish, debris, off-cuts, excess, or any other
~terials to be stored outside of a container fit for purpose.

Inflatables

Allinflatables on site will have a valid and in-date certification from PIPA or an equivalent governing authority
on the safety of commercial inflatables. This must be available in physical form for inspection at any point
while the inflatable structure is on site. Failure to have a certificate available for inspection will mean the
inflatable cannot be inflated and cannot be used by any member of staff or public.

Fairgrounds

Similar to inflatables, any fairground rides must have an in-date and valid certification from ADIPS or an
equivalent governing authority suitable for commercial fairground use, that includes the regular and
documented inspection and testing of the equipment. This must be on site in physical form whenever the
fairground rides themselves are on site.

Pyrotechnics/CO2

These must be operated by a suitably qualified and experienced individual. They must be planned and
calculated by a qualified and experienced individual before they ever reach the site. That is to say it is not
acceptable to manually adjust or otherwise modify an already-set feature once on site, without the submission
of the updated paperwork, calculations and risk assessments that have come from a suitably qualified and
experienced individual that is the named individual in charge of this department for the specific event.

Licensing

The venue license is available on request and outlines the licensing objectives that all events must comply
with. Under no circumstances will any of these conditions be breached and the venue reserves the right to
demand, for example, the turning down of audio, the ceasing of fireworks displays, the ending of an event
early based on crowd dynamics or any other aspect that may lead to licensing objectives not being met.

We will not make individual exceptions to the licensing rules, so please don’t embarrass both yourselves and
us by asking for exceptions,

Created by Theo Smith rsion 1| Is 03/11/2017
Page'ay 1



Page 50



MonksHiill

Showground

Venue Safety Management Plan

Page 51



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

Introduction

Monks Hill Showground is a 60-acre site positioned between Faversham and

Whitstable in the heart of Kent. It is available for dry hire to event organisers with
basic facilities catered for, including the provision of potable water and basic
electrical supply. The showground is run by Video lllusions Ltd in partnership with
the land owners, and boasts a farm shop, restaurant and up-coming glamping

pods alongside 8 large fields of events space.

Created by Theo Smith | Version léuéjed 03/11/2017 2



' Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground
MonksHill
Showground

Version Control

Author Version Date
Theo Smith 0.1 - Draft 04/11/2017

Contents

Section 1 — Background (g) Duties of Contractors
(a) Venue Address, Area & Local Seiction3~bive Rules s
colunel (a) General Responsibilities
(b) Venue Map (b) Contractors

(c) Safety Briefing

(d) PPE

(e) Smoking, Alcohol & Drugs
(f)  Unauthorised Access

(c) Client Overview

(d) Roles & Responsibilities
Section 2 — Law

(a) Main Legislation

(b) The Health & Safety at Work (g) Segregation
etc. Act 1974 (h) Materials
(c) The Managemeant of Health & (’_) Waste _
Safety at Work Regulations () Safety EqU|pm.ent
1999 (k) Storage of Equipment &

(d}) Company Mission Statement Materials

(e) Construction Design (1 ACCidE_ﬂt Seporting &
Management Regulations lrwes.tlganon. .
(CDM) 2015 (m) Medical Provisian

(n) Manual Handling Operations

(f) Duties of Operations Manager .
Regulations (MHOR 1992)

Created by Theo Smith | Prggélsggfi/ll/?_[)l? 3



MonksHill
Showground

(o)
(p)
(a)
(r)

(s)

(t)

(u)
(v)

(w)

(x)
(v)
(z)

Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

Working at Height Regulations
Ladders

Animals

Temporary Demountable
Structures

Control of Substances
Hazardous to Health
Regulations (COSHH 2002)
Lifting Operations & Lifting
Equipment Regulations (LOLER
1998)

Equipment Suspended At
Height

Welfare

Electricity at Work Regulations
(1989)

Lone Working

Fatigue

Safe Use of Mobile Elevating
Work Platforms

Section 4 — Build-Phase Briefings

(a)
{b)
{c)
{d)
{e)
{f)

Safety Briefing
Work to be carried out
Sign offs

Staff & Contractor Accreditation

Stage and Set Installations
Communication on Build and
De-Rig

Section 5 — Live Event Protocol

(a)
{b)
{c)
{d)
{e)
{f)
{e)
(h)

{i)
{i)
{k)
{n
{m)
{n)
{0)
Section 6 - License

(a)

(b)

Live Event Arrangements
Safety Briefing

Toilet Facilities

Command & Control
Security & Stewarding

Noise Management

Incident Reporting

Waste Management/Site
Cleaning

Pedestrian Arrival / Departure
Bars & Catering

Special Effects

Traffic Management

Fire Safety

Medical & Welfare Provision
Disabled Facilities Provision

Venue License & Council
Interaction
Licensing Objectives

Section 7 — Emergency Procedures

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)
(f)

General Fire & Evacuation
Instructions

Evacuation Routes

Show Stop / Emergency PA
Announcement

Reporting Detection of a
Suspect Package

Assembly Point

Nearest Hospital

The following are separate attachments:

Appendix A - Maps

Created by Theo Smiﬁla\leéig 1§szred 03/11/2017

(a) Site Map
(b) Local Area Traffic Map
(c) Site Map with Water Provision
(d) Site Map with Power & Internet
Provision
Appendix B - Risk Assessments
(a) All Risk Assessments
Appendix C — Occupant Capacity
(b) Total Capacity for Each Area of
the Site
Appendix D - Contractor Checklist

References



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

1.a. Venue Address, Area & Local Council

The venue address is “Monkshill Showground, Monkshill Road, Faversham, ME13 9EH” and it is situated in the district of
Swale in the county of Kent. The local council is Swale Borough Council.

1.b. Venue Map

Map 1: On-Site Access Roads

Monkshill Road, Faversham

MonksHill ME13 9EH
Showground

s - Proposed Roads @® -Trees
em=m - Current Roads EEm - Buildings

Created by Theo Smith | issued 05 41 2017 | Version 1

Created by Theo Smith | pﬁrgéssScBB/H/ZDl? 5



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

MonksHill
Showground

1.c. Client Overview

Video lllusions Ltd are a privately-owned company run by Dave and Nick Whiteoak. They are an event production company
specialising in video transmission and presentation with a base in Kent but working internationally with a wide range of
clients. Video lllusions have partnered up with the venue owners to offer event production and an event space from
Monks Hill Showground.

1.d. Roles & Responsibilities

Role Company Name Responsibility

Venue Manager /
Designated Premises
Supervisor

Video lllusions Ltd

Dave Whiteoak

Overall strategic responsibility or premises license
and safe operation of venue .
Responsible for liaison with neighbours and

responsible authorities, ensuring compliance with
premises license and planning conditions including
venue emergency procedure briefings

Camberall Ltd Theo Smith The Safety Consultant will provide advice and
guidance as per both the Event Safety Guide and
HSAW 1974 for the venue’s overall safety
planning. Event-specific consultancy will be

required separately on a per-event basis.

Safety Consultant

Section 2 — Law

2.a. Main Legislation

This document and its attached appendices are provided as a guide for the proper compliance and obligations laid out in
the Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and is not exhaustive. Both Individuals and Organisations still have their own
responsibilities with regards to health and safety and licensing objectives and Video Illusions Ltd will take all reasonably
practicable steps to ensure the health, safety and welfare of all employees and sub-contractors

2.b. The Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

$.2 (1) “It shall be the duty of every employer to ensure, as far as is reasonably practicable the health, safety and welfare
ofall his employees” $3(1)“It shall be the duty of every employer to conduct his undertaking in such a way as to ensure, as
far as is reasonably practicable, that persons not in his employment who may be affected thereby and are not exposed to
risks to their health and safety”

2.c. The Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations 1999

Regulation 3 (1) “Every employer (and self-employed) shall make a suitable and sufficient assessment of -: (a)The risks to
the health and safety of his employees to whichthey are exposed whilst they are at work, and(b)The risks to the health and
safety of persons not in his employment arising out of or in connection with the conduct of him or his undertaking, for the
purpose of identifying the measures he needs to take to comply with the requirements and prohibitions imposed on him
by or under the relevant statutory provisions”

2.d. Company Mission Statement
¢ Video lllusions will create and maintain a positive health and safety culture which secures the commitment and
participation of all employees and sub-contractors
e  Video lllusions Ltd recognises that the legal requirements are the minimum standard to maintain and that all
activities should develop on these processes.
. Adopting a planned and systematic approach to the implementation of the Company's H&S policy, to ensure:

o the provision and maintenance of plant and systems of work that are, so far as is reasonably practicable, safe and
without risk to health;

o  arrangements for ensuring, so far as is reasonably practicable, safety and the absence of risks to health in connection
with the use, handling, storage and transport of articles and substances;

o  the provision of such information, instruction, training and supervision as is necessary to ensure, so far as is
reasonably practicable, the health and safety at work of its employees;

o  the maintenance of any place of work under the Company’s control in a condition that is safe and without risks to
health and theprovision and maintenance of means of access to and egress from these places of work that are safe and
without such risks so far as is reasonably practicable; and

o the provision and maintenance of a working environment for employees that is, so far as is reasonably practicable,
sate, without risks to health and adequate as regards facilities and arrangements for their welfare at work

° Identifying and assessing the risks associated with all activities of the Company with the aim of eliminating or controlling the
risks, so far as is reasonably practicable.
° Allocating resources to meet the requirements of the Company's health and safety policy

Created by Theo Smith | Version lélgjed 03/11/2017 6

Page



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

2.e. Construction Design Management Regulations (CDM) 2015

CDM 2015 is a regulation that has been created in the construction phase of the event to protect people involved in this
phase from harm and anyone that their works may affect.This is achieved though proper planning and co-ordination of
project, to make sure competent people are in the correct roles and there is a rigid communication system to make sure a
safe system of work is implemented and maintained at all times throughout the project.

The constructionphase istheperiodduring the build and the de-rig period of the event.The construction site
includesanyplacewhereconstructionworkisbeingcarriedoutortowhichtheworkershaveaccess,butdoesnotinclude a
workplacewithinthesitewhichissetaside for purposesother thanconstruction work.

Application
TheseRegulations apply in Great Britain; and topremisesandactivitiesoutsideGreatBritaintotheHealthandSafetyatWorketc.
Act 1974 (ApplicationoutsideGreatBritain) Order 2013(b).

Notification
A project is notifiable in the following circumstances:
e lastlongerthan30 workingdaysandhavemorethan20workers (contractors)workingsimultaneouslyat any point in
the project, or
e Exceed500 person days
e Where a projectisnotifiable,theclientmustgivenoticeinwritingtotheExecutiveassoonas is practicablebeforethe
constructionphasebegins.

The notice must contain the following:
e  Contain the particulars specified in Pre-production information
e  Beclearlydisplayed in thesiteofficewhereitcanbe read byanyworker engaged in the construction work; and
e [f requiredperiodicallyupdated as a live document on site during the construction phase.

Application for DomesticClients
Wheretheclientis a domesticclientthedutiesinregulations4(1)to(7)and 6 mustbe carried out by:-
e The contractor for a project wherethere is only one contractor
e  Theprincipaldesignerwherethereis a writtenagreementthattheprincipaldesignerwillfulfil those duties; the
designer in control if not assigned will automatically take control of the pre-production phase

The principal contractor for aproject where there is morethan onecontractor; the contractor in control of the construction
phase if not assigned will automatically take the role of Principal Contractor.

CDM Roles and Responsibilities
Under CDM 2015, organisations orindividuals can be one or multiple duty holders for a project. The different duty holders
and their responsibilities under CDM are summarised below.

Client- Event-Dependent
A client is defined as anyone for whom a production / live event that includes ‘construction” work is carried out.They hold
the overall responsibility of the project.

Proportionate to the scale of the construction and the risks involved, a client’s main duties (functions) include:

*  Make suitable arrangements to ensure that, so far as reasonably practicable, work is carried out safely

e Ensure there is proper cooperation and coordination between those involved in the planning, design and
management of construction work

e Holds the overall responsibility for planning the project/ event

¢  Appointing a Principal Designer (PD) and Principal Contractor (PC), and ensure they carry out their duties

e Ensure suitable documentation is drawn up in the planning phase — the Construction Phase Plan

e Allrelevant information is prepared and provided to all duty holders

e Ensure suitable welfare facilities are available throughout

e Notified to HSE if construction work lasts longer than 30 working days and has more than 20 workers
simultaneously or exceeds 500 person days

Created by Theo Smith | pﬁ@ éss5d73/11/2017 7



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

Principal Designer (PD)- Event-Dependent
A PD is defined as someone who arranges for or instructs persons under their control to prepare or madify designs
relevant to the construction, maintenance and use of a structure. A PD’s main duties include:

e Liaise directly with the Client and other CDM duty holders throughout all phases

e  Coordinate the pre-construction phase

¢ Involvement in the design of the structure and the risk associated with the design

® Passing relevant information onto duty holders during planning

e  Ensure accidents are reported to enforcing authorities and brought to the attention of the venue

Principal Contractor (PC)- Event Dependent

A PCis defined as the organisation {or person) who plans, manages and monitors the construction phase and coordinates
matters relating to health and safety during the event build and break down to ensure that, so far as reasonably practical,
the work is carried out without risk to health and safety.

A PC’s main duties include:

e  Produce and update as required a suitable and sufficient Construction Phase Plan for the project, or make
arrangements to do so

e  Responsible for the planning, managing, monitoring and coordinating at all phases of the build / de-rig of
structures on site

e Apply the general principles of risk prevention to the build and breakdown of the event by eliminating or
controlling risks so far as is reasonably practicable

° Ensure everyone working onsite receives appropriate site specific health and safety information via a suitable site
induction — including site rules, medical, fire and emergency procedures

e  Reasonable steps are takento prevent unauthorised access

s  Workers are consulted and engaged in securing their health and safety

e  Suitable welfare facilities are in place

2.f. Duties of Operations Manager

The Operations Directorhas the responsibility for the implementation of the Company’s Health and Safety policy.
Additionally, Dave Whiteoak and a number of designated crew bosses (names thc on each show)will supervise various
phases of show builds and de-rigs, and have delegated responsibility for the implementation of the policy at an operational
level during those times.

All on site staff are responsible to these people for matters pertaining to health and safety within their areas of
accountability.

Responsibilities include, but are not restricted to:

e  Ensure health and safety, site rules and regulations are a major consideration when planning the Event

e  Production and circulation of site maps

e  (o-ordinate and manage all contractors during build phase

e  Liaison with all staff during event times

e  Ensure staff under their control, including freelance workers and contractors, are competent and fully aware of
any potential hazards

e  Making sure all sub-contractors have received all site specific information and site rules

e  Ensuring all aspects of build are safely installed and are placed in accordance with pre-approved site plans

e  Reporting of any incidents/accidents onsite

e  Ensure adequate medical provisions are in place and that all workers are aware of provisions

e  Ensure Personal Protective Equipment required is suitable and worn by all employees; and by all persons deemed
to be at risk

e Monitor all plant and work equipment to ensure it is operated in a safe manner and any fitted safety devices are
used in the correct way

e Inform all persons on site of emergency procedures/protocols and bring the emergency fire routes and
evacuation areas to their attention

e  Maintain good housekeeping in order to reduce the risk of trip/slip hazards and fire risks

¢  Making sure all sub-contractors have received all site specific information and site rules

e Check contractor compliance with the Company’s method statements and risk assessments

¢ Maintain vigilance of fire hazards in the workplace at all times onsite

e  Ensuring any incident or accident is appropriately reported, logged and investigate

Created by Theo Srrwﬁ | Version ISIéued 03/11/2017 8



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground
MonksHill
Showground

2.g. Duties of Contractors
Contractors have the following responsibilities and duties:

e All work activities must be undertaken as per contractor’s risk assessment and carried out as per method
statements, any work carried out that is deemed to be unsafe or unsatisfactory by the Production
ManagementTeamwill be terminated immediately. (SeeManagement of Health and Safety at Work Regulations
1999, regulation 3)

e The provision of a safe working environment without risks to health and with adequate facilities and
arrangements for welfare at work

e  The provision and maintenance of safe plant

e The provision of safe systems of work

e  The safe use, handling and storage of hazardous materials / equipment

e The provision of information, instruction, training and supervision

e  The maintenance of the workplace in a safe condition and the provision of safe entrances and exits

e The preparation of a written statement of Policy on Health and Safety

¢ The provision of information to any person supplied by you or to you by an employment agency, before that
person starts work, as to any occupational qualifications or skills that person must have in order to work safely

e This information must also be given to any agency who must pass this information to its employees who will
work for the client or employer

*  Toensure they make reference to and apply any relevant information given to them by the Producerconcerning
any hazards associated with the work and premises

s Toensure they comply with any instructions given by the EventManagementTeamon health and safety matters.

Section 3 — Site Rules

3.a.General Responsibilities
It is a condition of attendance on site that all staff and contractors follow the rules laid out in this document. This is to
ensure the minimum level of compliance required for the events space in line with UK law.

3.b.Contractors

It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure that a safe system of work is used at all times and that the proposed
system takes into account the safety of anyone affected by the operation. The proposed system should be provided to
Dave Whiteoak for discussion with others at the contractor’s operations meetings. All work activities must be undertaken
as per contractor’s risk assessments and carried out as per method statements.

3.c.Safety Briefing

All staff and contractors must attend the Safety Briefing prior to all works commencing which will be conducted by the
Producer/ Production Management Team. The Safety Briefing will include site rules, general working arrangements and
requirements, the fire/ emergency procedures and reporting procedures

3.d.PPE

All staff will maintain and ensure the use of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) relevant to their task(s). All contractors
and suppliers will maintain and ensure the use of PPE relevant to their task as identified in their site specific method
statement and risk assessment. Non-compliance could result in the removal from site.

All staff conducting work activities externallywill wear a minimum of steel toe cap footwear and high visibility vestsduring
any loading, unloading and movement of vehicles. Where work is being conducted overhead a hard hat shall be worn at all
times.

3.e.Smoking, Alcohol & Drugs

Smoking is only permitted outside any buildings and in designated areas, usually within the vicinity of exterior
ashtrays.Contractors are not permitted to consume alcohol or take drugs (including certain prescription medication) during
the build, event and de-rig. Any person who is believed by the Producer/ Production ManagementTeam to be intoxicated
will be considered to be unable to carry out their duties safely and will be required to leave the premises.

3.f.Unauthorised Access

The site access to be controlled by the external Event Producer for build and de-rig, and by their designated security
company for the live events. No Contractor or those in their control shall enter into any unauthorized area for any purpose
whatsoever (emergency excepted) without first obtaining permission to do so from the external event producer, who in
turn submits all their access requirements ahead of any build or event to Video Illusions Ltd. Visitors are prohibited from

Created by Theo Smith | ’ S /11/2017
9



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

MonksHill
Showground

entering the authorized or segregated areas for working unless accompanied by a member of Production Management
team, or Security Personnel.

3.g.Segregation
All Contractors shall ensure that their equipment and material is left in a tidy and safe condition and is segregated from
others, not left unattended and that clear access is maintained at all times.

3.h.Materials

All decorations, scenery, props, drapes and hangings brought onto siteto be used for the duration of all functions must
comply with relevant standards and should be maintained flame retarded. If any doubt exists about the flame retardant
level of a material, then a test certificate to show compliance with the appropriate standard must be forwarded to the
Health and Safety Consultant / Production Management team.

3.i.Waste

All waste must be collected and removed to a designated point to be advised. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to
ensure that any waste generated by their operations is removed from site promptly following the conclusion of the
installation / each event.

The Contractor is also responsible for ensuring that Controlled waste is collected and disposed in accordance with the
Environmental Protection Act 1990.

3.j.Safety Equipment
All safety equipment located across the showground will remain un-tampered and unobstructed at all times, venue fire
safety equipment includes call points, safety lighting and fire extinguishers

3.k.Storage of Equipment & Materials

All equipment & materials will be stored in agreed areas which will be included in the contractor’s site map, and which in
turn shall have no impact on any fire and / or evacuation routes. All contractors will also ensure that all equipment and
surplus (hazardous) materials are returned to designated storage facilities at the end of each working shift

3.L.Accident Reporting & Investigation

All accidents, incidents and near misses must be reported without delay to the Event Producer. An accident book (Bl 510)
will be on site at all times.The Contractor is responsible for reparting incidents to the enforcing authority as required by
the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 (RIDDOR).

Accident reports shall be forwarded on to Video lllusions Ltd.

3.m.Medical Provision
In general, the site will have 1x venue first aider that can cover the venue staff and visitors as a first response.

Should someone suffer an injuryduring the build or de-rig the productionteam will be informed to assess the situation and
call their own first aider(who will be anoperational/production team member)to attend if required.

Should someane suffer an injury during the live event, event control will be informed to call the medical team provided by
The external event producer.All accidents and incidents must be recorded and follow RIDDOR regulationsat all times.
ProductionManagement and Production ManagementTeam to monitor thisat all times.

3.n.Manual Handling Operations Regulations (MHOR 1992)

Like all of the other legislation enacted in 1992, the Manual Handling Regulations are risk assessment based.Always try to
move things mechanically whenever possible. If a trolley or other such device is not available, seek help. Two people or
more sharing a load is much safer than trying to lift alone and will minimise the risk of injury.

When involved in the manual handling; the load, the individual’s capabilities, task and environment condition should be
assessed before carrying out the activity

3.0.Working at Height Regulations
e The working at height hierarchy must be followed at all times avoiding any work at height wherever possible
e  When it is necessary to work at heights precautions must be taken to prevent a fall
e Where working platforms are provided, handrails and toe boards must be provided, scaffolding must be
provided, and erected by a competent, trained person and must comply with all regulations
e  Care must be taken to ensure that nothing can fall onto persons below
° Ladders must be of sound construction and of adequate length

Created by Theo Snﬁgﬁsén %(jued 03/11/2017 10



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

MonksHill
Showgmmd

e Whilst working at height, full body harnesses {where a risk assessment has identified the need for) attached to
correct fall arresters/lanyards, must be worn. Body harnesses must be manufactures in accordance with BS5750,
comply with EN361 and carry a CE mark. A rescue plan must be in place

e Whilst rigging machinery and equipmentall chain locks and primary load bearing RSJs must be secured solidly and
be of adequate SWL

e  Allemployees and contractors must have, and comply with, current rigging certification

e All tools should be attached to person so far as reasonably practicable

3.p.Ladders
If the work to be carried out identifies ladders as the most suitable means of accessthen the ladders should be:
* Ingood condition
e  Positioned at the correct angle to allow a 1:4 ratio
e Secure, to prevent slipping sideways or outwards
¢  Raised a sufficient height above the landing place or work platform
e  Correctly positioned to prevent over-stretching
e  Rested against a solid surface, or be a ‘footed’ A frame ZARGEE (or similar

3.g.Animals

Bringing animals on to site as part of an event will require a separate risk assessment to be submitted to the venue by the
external event producer. Reasonable steps must be taken to ensure animals are not exposed to any unreasonable levels of
stress and that their individual requirements are taken into account. Animal cruelty is a crime. There will be adequate
breaks for any animals on site and there will be a provision for accommaodation, designate performance/interaction area,
designated rest times, adequate provision of food and water and adequate shelter from the elements

3.r.Temporary Demountable Structures

e All structures must be provided by competent suppliers and will be constructed using manufacturers designed
components

s All temporary structures and equipment installations will be designed and built/installed by suitably appointed
contractors

s Full technical drawings, supporting calculations and any relevant test results will be made available before
construction commences. All design loads shall be in accordance with the appropriate British Standards having
regard to their location and use

¢ All main contractors shall submit a risk assessments and method statement before starting work

e  The External Event Producer will ensure that contractors and site personnel follow safe working practices relating
to the erection and construction of the structures

e All structures will be checked by a competent person and certified as being safe before they are used by
providing a completion certificates to the Producer

e  There must be suitable and sufficient means of access and egress at all stages during construction and break
down

e  On no account must the structural fabric of the temporary structure be used other than the attended designed
purpose

e Any structure that creates a trip hazard will be clearly identifiable with markings on the outside of platform, to
alert all persons in the change of level and location of the edge

3.s.Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations (COSHH 2002)
If such substances are to be used, ensure that you use any substances (such as cleaning materials) in accordance with the
manufacturer’s recommendations.

Manufacturer and/or suppliers have a duty under the regulations to provide Hazard Data Sheets (HDS's or MSDS), which
contain vital health and safety information.

Always read the packaging with any product and refer to the HDS / MSDS if necessary.Where a risk assessment has
identified the need for greater control measures, Dave Whiteoak andthe venue production teammust be madeaware prior
to the substance going onto site.

3.t. Lifting Operations & Lifting Equipment Regulations (LOLER 1998)
All lifting equipment used must be suitable for the task and of adequate strength. All equipment must be marked with safe

working loads and must be inspected daily when in use.

Lifting equipment must be operated by a competent person and therefore all operators must have received adequate
training on the equipment to be used.

Created by Theo Smith | ‘Psa.rg éssx6113/11/2017 11



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

Policy and procedures:

e  All employees or sub-contractors may only operate mechanical handling equipment if they have been fully
trained in the operation of such equipment and hold a valid requisite license and have been granted permission
to do so

e All equipment used must fully comply with all regulations relating to testing and examination and must be to the
management’s satisfaction

e All equipment must be in safe working order and operators will, prior to use, carry out a walk-around check

e All operators will be aware of ground/floor stability

3.u.Equipment Suspended At Height
All suspended equipment should be provided with a secondary means of protection i.e. a safety chain or wire bond

3.v.Welfare

Contractors who use the site welfare facilities at Monks Hill Showground (e.g. storage rooms, toilets, out buildings, etc.) do
so at their own risk.Please ensure all facilities are kept clean and free of obstruction.All staff and guests will have sufficient
access to toilet facilities. Water will be made available to all staff by the Venue Management Team.

3.w.Electricity at Work Regulations {1989)

These regulations require that precautions be taken against the risk of death or injury from electricity in work activities. All
electrical ‘systems’ must at all times be of such construction as to prevent danger. All electrical installation work willbe
undertaken by competent persons.

As with all other relevant legislation, risk assessments will be carried out and recorded. As electricity carries a significant
risk on each job, job specific risk assessments will record the element of risk.The following are general rules for all electrical
work on site at Monks Hill Showground:
e  Never work on electrical or conductors unless trained and authorised to do so. You must be thoroughly familiar
with the work you are about to do, and if in doubt check with the personin charge
e Always de-energise equipment or conductors before attempting to work on or close to them. Where this is
impracticable, precautionary measures such as the use of shrouded tools or insulating guards must be used in
order to prevent accidental contact
e  Regard all electrical conductors and equipment as being live unless you are certain they have been isolated and
cannot be re-energised by another person without your knowledge

Except for authorised electrical maintenance personnel, all other contractors are forbidden to carry out any electrical
repair work, modify any electrical equipment or improvise any electrical repair work, modify any electrical equipment or
improvise any electrical extensions, lighting etc. All contractors working on electrical installations must follow the rules
below:
e  All portable tools, appliances and equipment will be earthed or will be double insulated
e  Rubber insulating gloves and rubber soled shoes or boots will be worn when working on live electrical
equipment. No work on live equipment will take place unless it is not possible to work otherwise
¢ Inwetor damp conditions, earthed electrical tools and equipment will be used, and where practicable further
protection will be provided, such as earth leakage circuit breakers (RCDs) and insulating protective clothing
e  Metal ladders are prohibited for use in areas where contact may be made with live equipment or conductors
e  Sufficient access and working space and suitable and adequate lighting will be maintained around all work areas
where electrical work is taking place

These are the responsibilities of the designated competent person and any others who carry out electrical work:

¢  Toensure as far as possible that systems, plant and equipment for which they are responsible are designed,
constructed, installed and maintained to ensure the maximum practical level of safety, and to take into account
any special hazardous conditions such as wet, corrosive or flammable environments when selecting electrical
equipment

¢  Toensure that maintenance and other work on or nearby any electrical system is carried out in such a way as not
to give rise to danger

e  To ensure that proper means of cutting off power and isolating equipment are made available in all appropriate
cases

¢ Inrespect of work on electrical equipment, to ensure that adequate precautions have been taken to make and
keep all dangerous electrical equipment and to ensure that there is no live working unless it is absolutely
essential and the work cannot be done in any other way

¢  Where live working is essential, to observe all possible precautions in respect of insulation, barriers, restriction of
wark and person working, and other precautions to prevent danger

Created by Theo Smﬁ a/egrsg 16I2ued 03/11/2017 12



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

¢ Toensure as a far as possible that adequate working space, access and lighting areprovided whenever work is
done at or near any electrical equipment

e Toensure as a far as possible that all persons for whom they are responsible have the appropriate technical
knowledge or experience for the work they are employed to do, or are being effectively trained and supervised in
their work

3.x.Lone Working
Lone working is to be avoided. If lone working is unavoidable, adequate safeguards must be put in place, e.g. regular visits
to ensure the safety of the operative.

3.y.Fatigue
Anincreased riskof accidents can occur if persons are allowed to work for extended periods of time without adequate rest
periods. This cause’s mental and physical fatigue which result in errors of judgement which lead to accidents.

Mental fatigue is the most dangerous type of fatigue as it canresult in errors of judgement.The risk assessments carried out
by contractors will require taking account of the possible effects of fatigue, especially where employees operate
machinery.

Dave Whiteoak and the Venue Management Team will ensure that all venue staff and contractors take regular scheduled
breaks.

3.z2.5afe Use of Mobile Elevating Work Platforms
Mobile Elevating Work Platforms can provide excellent safe access to high level work. When using a MEWP make sure that:
e Employees and subcontractors operating it are fully trained and competent.
e  The work platform is provided with guard rails and toe boards or other suitable barriers.
e |tisused on firm and level ground. The ground may have to be prepared in advance.
e [ts tyres are properly inflated.
e Any outriggers are extended and chocked as necessary before raising the platform.
¢ Aplanisin place ensuring it is known what to do if the machine fails when the platform is in the raised position.
e  Safety harnesses with a restraint lanyard should be used for all boom lift or cherry picker MEWPs.

¢  Operate Mobile Elevating Work Platforms close to overhead cables or other dangerous machinery.

¢ Allow limbs to protrude into traffic route when working near vehicles.

¢ Move the equipment in the raised position unless the equipment is designed to allow this to be done safely
(check the manufacturer’s instructions).

*  Some Mobile Elevating Work Platforms are described as suitable for ‘rough terrain’. This usually means they are
safe to use on some uneven or undulating ground but check their limitations in the manufacturer’s handbook
before taking them onto unprepared sloping ground.

Safe working loads (SWL)
¢ Each manufacturer states the maximum SWL and is usually stated in kg or by a silhouette or number of persons
i.e. one person and equipment 120kg. The average person being approximately 90kg.
e The instruction manual which should be on the machine protected from the elements will state the SWLand the
conditions under which these loads are to be used.
¢ Machines are intended to access personnel and their equipment to the work area in an elevated position and not
for use as a crane goods lift or hoist.

Created by Theo Smith | Pagessegylllzﬂﬂ 13



finmy, 40

M Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground
MonksHill
Showground

Section 4 — Build-Phase Briefings

4.a. Safety Briefing

Before workstarts a safety briefing will be given to all personnel working for and on behalf of Video lllusions Ltd. The
Operations Manager willensure that all key personnel are aware of all necessary requirements, for working onsiteand the
procedures to follow in theevent of any specific emergency or incident.

4.b. Work to be carried out

The External Event Producer will monitor and supervise works to make sure the correct personal protective equipment
(PPE) is been worn, and provided where required.When not in use all equipment must be correctly and securely stored
away

4.c. Sign offs

Once work is finished the External Events Producerwill make sure the proper signoffs have been completed forall
installations including stage and set. Heads of Departmentwill ensure the event area is clearof all excess equipment and it
is appropriately stored in the designated storagearea. The Event-Specific Safety Advisor will also produce a sign off prior to
the event commencing.

4.d. Staff & Contractor Accreditation
Accreditation will be issued to all staff and contractors upon arrival to site and prior to them commencing their duties. This
is the responsibility of the External Event Producer.

4.e. Stage and Set Installations

All installations will be conducted by competent contractors. All installations will be signed off by the relevantHead of
Department. All documentation will bekeptsecurelyonsite and made available upon request. Staging plans will be
produced and all staging will have weight-loads calculated to ensure that any imposed loads are within the design
parameters of the staging.

4.f. Communication on Build and De-Rig
The use of 2-way radios either licensed or unlicensed will be encouraged for all performances. It is the responsibility of the
external event producer to organise an adequate license for the entirety of their use of the space, if required.

Section 5 — Live Event Protocol

5.a. Live Event Arrangements

This section looks at the obligations on External Event Producers laid out by the venue to ensure safe working practices.
These conditions must be met for the successful use of the event space and any external contractor seeking to use the
Monks Hill Showground must comply with these conditicns alongside their own safety procedures. This ensures there is
unity across events organisation, making the use of space more efficient.

5.b. Safety Briefing

All Heads of Department must attend the Safety Briefingprior to guest arrival on event day. Thisshall be conducted by a
member of the Operations Management team. The safety briefing will ensureoperations are correctly co-ordinated and
any issues are effectively communicated. The fire and evacuation proceduresshall be discussed in thesafety briefing. It will
be the responsibility of the Heads of Departments to pass relevant information onto their staff and contractors.

5.c. Toilet Facilities

There are minimal toilet facilities on site and it is therefore required that External Event Producers evidence the
calculations they have made for the numbers of toilets they will bring on to site. These calculations and toilet numbers
must be shared with the venue before the build phase and be agreed in writing by the venue. Failure to do so will result in
the venue’s refusal to open to the public on grounds of public safety. Calculations should be referencing The Purple Guide.

Created by Theo Sm'Fb gﬁ@ 16Ia1ed 03/11/2017 14



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

5.d. Command & Control
The use of two way radios will be encouraged throughout the entirety of any production.A co-ordinating event control
operation should be facilitated by the event security team.

Under normal conditions, management of the event will be undertaken by the External Event Producer’s Event
Manager.The function of their Event Control is to oversee the smooth running of all aspects of the event and to deal
withany Untoward Incidents that may arise. The ultimate authority for cancellation or suspension of the event will rest
with Event Control, however it is anticipated that a team approach to decision making (comprised ofEvent Control and
appropriate members of the Event Management Team dictated by the situation) will beemployed both in normal, and
emergency conditions.

It is expected that the External Event Producer will have their own clear and advanced control process which is advanced
to the venue before the commencement of build phase. If this is not the case, the below acts as a framework for external
contractors to work to.

Operation of Event Control during Normal Conditions

All management teams will relay key decisions to Event Control as a matter of course, throughout theevent. Event Control
will be continuously staffed by a representative of the Security team. Event Control will log all radio calls and manage
deployments and responses as required.

Operation of Event Control during an Untoward Incident

An incident which has serious consequences to an individual, group of people or the Event Organisers. The incident may
damage the reputation of the Event Organisers, attract press attention or result in litigation.The event continues to run
under control of the External Event Producer’s Event Manager and she decides what action should betaken. Her decisions
as to what the on and off-site response should be will be made in close consultation withthe Head of Security and if
necessary, Police and other Emergency Services. The Event Management Teamwill respond to the incident and take the
appropriate action. Management ofthe event would continue to be run by the Event Management Team, with regular
communications between all parties via Control.

Operation of Event Control during an Emergency Situation

An emergency is a situation that poses an immediate risk to health, life,property, or environment. Most emergencies
require urgent intervention to prevent a worsening of the situation, although in some situations,mitigation may not be
possible and agencies may only be able to offer palliative care for the aftermath.The event continues to run under the
direction of the External Event Producer’s Event Manager, in consultation with the Police.Decisions about what on and off-
site responses should be made will be reached in consultation with thePolice. The Police, LAS and /or LFB and the Event
Management team will respond to the incident and takeappropriate action. The Operations Director, Head of Security and
Police will, in consultation, decide whetheror not to stop the event.

Operation of Event Control during a Major Incident

A major incident can be defined as any emergency that requires the implementation of special arrangementsby one or
more of the Emergency Services, the NHS ar local Authority for: The initial treatment, rescue andtransport of a large
number of casualties.lt is agreed that the Police take ‘Primacy’. They take over control of the event and make decisions on
howthe incident should be dealt with. The Operations Director and her management team assist the Police inimplementing
their plan to deal with the incident. Event Control will work in support of the emergency services under the co-ordination
of the Police. In such circumstances Event Control may be re-assignedby the seniorPolice Commander as the Forward
Control Point unless it is compromised by the incident.

5.e. Security & Stewarding

Security will be provided and deployed to strategic positions, governed by the External Event Producer and their security
contractor’s Head of Security, to assist with the crowd management and control of the guests throughout the event. All
staff will be uniformed and adequately identifiable.

5.f. Noise Management

As part of the premises license, noise management restrictions will be put in place. The venue will undertake an acoustic
consultation with a specialist to determine the best structure to comply with the licensing objectives laid down by the local
council.

5.g. Incident Reporting

An Incident Report Register will be maintained which will include the name and contact details of any security personnel
and/ or member of staff/ guest involved in any incident. The exact detail and extent of the incident including date, time,
location etc. and details such as anti-social behaviour will be recorded. The name and number of the police officer in
attendance (if required) and details of any witness shall also be recorded.

Created by Theo Smith | i s /11/2017
Page-65 15



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

MonksHill
Showground
5.h. Waste Management/Site Cleaning

Cleaning services will be provided by the External Event Producer, event waste transfer will also be carried out by the
External Event Producer. The cleaning contractor will provide staff to clean the venue interior and exteriors, including the
ingress and egress routes and the land immediately surrounding the venue space.

5.i. Pedestrian Arrival / Departure

The venue space is remote and away from public transport hubs. The public road outside the front is a country unmarked
road with no pavement. This means the External Event Producer must show a plan for the safe conveyance of any guests
or contractors they reasonably believe to arrive on foot to ensure both licensing objectives as well as safe traffic
management.

5.j. Bars & Catering
The External Event Producer will collate all of the relevant paperwork including Gas Safe Certificates, Insurances, Risk
assessments, Staff Training Records, COSHH Records, HACCP Records and details of their local authority food business
registration details.

A challenge 25 policy will be in operation at all bars. Allsales of alcohol will be made under the authority of the DPS in line
with the licensing objectives.

5.k. Special Effects

Emergency stops will be installed at both the stage and front of house control positions for any special effects. These stops
will immediately shut down all special effects if required. Any laser or Pyrotechnic installation must require a key for
operation, which will be removed by the operator when the equipment is not in use or left unattended.

External Event Producers must evidence their sub-contractors’ training and experience for all laser, fireworks or
pyrotechnics and cryotechnics installations at all events.

5.L. Traffic Management

Off Site

A one-way system looping from the dual carriageway back onto the M2 that uses a combination of stewards and AA Road
signs is included in the appendix below. This is to ensure there is no unnecessary burden placed on the local community or
local emergency services. It is assumed most visitors and contractors will arrive in their own vehicles due to the location of
the event space and as such a provision for one-way system has been undertaken. This is the venue’s recommendation to
any External Event Producers and each event will require a traffic management plan that has been formed in consultation
with the venue and a traffic management professional.

On Site
The site is mostly farm land and its events-space use will be throughout the year at many different times of day and night.
As such, clearly segregated areas for public vehicle access and site vehicle access must be established in the traffic
management plan submitted by the External Event Producer and this must follow the following venue-specific conditions:
e Large-scale events of more than 100 vehicles expected must use a one-way system on and off site
e All events must have a public parking area that is physically separated from pedestrian and events arena spaces
e All events must have access routes for emergency services that remain clear and unobstructed at all times
e  Large-scale events of more than 100 vehicles must evidence a traffic management plan for the surrounding area
including the justified provision of stewards or event signage on public roads.

5.m. Fire Safety

The External Event Producer must create adequate fire risk assessments and provide fire fighting equipment appropriate
to their event, covering all phases of the event. The venue provides adequate fire fighting equipment for an empty site
with staff members, anything beyond this is the responsibility of the External Event Producer relative to their event
requirements.

5.n. Medical & Welfare Provision

The External Event Producer’s medical providers will deployresources as outlined in their plan, which will be submitted to
the venue before commencement of the build phase. Themedical providers will also deploy one member of welfare staff to
assist with any audience members who require nan-medical assistance or need time to rest and recover.

The External Event Producers will be committed to ensuring that the welfare of potentially vulnerable persons is
safeguarded through the following policy measures at their events:
¢ Identification of potentially vulnerable persons by bar staff and patrolling security and medical staff, these may
be people who have become vulnerable through misuse of alcohol or drugs.

Created by Theo Smps | Version ed 03/11/2017
"Page 66 16



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

e  Support for potentially vulnerable people by staff engagement, assessment and assistance (including for
example,contacting relatives or friends while offering medical assistance and a quiet place of refuge within
thevenue).

e  Provision of a ‘safe’ area where customers can rest away from any performance andrelated noise.

5.0. Disabled Facilities Provision
Any event-goers requiring special assistance will be identified and Personal Emergency Evacuation Plans agreed with the
Event Management Team.

Section 6 — License

6.a. Venue License & Council Interaction
The Monks Hill Showground will potentially be staging events by external contractors that contain the following licensable
activities:

e  The Sale and Provision of Alcohol

e  The Provision of Regulated Entertainment

e  The Provision of Late Night Refreshment

The Management seek to actively engage in conversation with the local council and the local parish to ensure transparency
and clarity of intention. This Venue Safety Management Plan is just one part of the compliance process for the venue to
ensure licensing objectives are met and exceeded, and it is recognised that the regulation and compliance process is an
ongoing, developing process for all involved.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Effective communication is established and maintained between Video lllusions Ltd, the External Event Producer and
relevant local authorities to ensure a positive action programme for combating crime and disorder is in place. All security
personnel operating must be SIA registered.

The Challenge 25/Think 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated on the event site at all times. All customers who appear
under the age of 25 will be challenged to prove that they are over 18 when attempting to purchase alcohol. Acceptable
forms of ID include a photo driving licence, passport, or home office approved identity card baring the holographic ‘PASS
mark. If the person seeking alcohol is unable to produce an acceptable form of identification, no sale or supply of alcohol
shall be made to or for that person.

All staff waorking on a bar or other outlet selling alcohol at the event shall be trained in the law about the sale of alcohal
and must be over 18. Such training will include challenging every individual who appears to be under 25 years of age and to
refuse service where individuals cannot produce acceptable means of identification, acceptable forms of ID and using the
refusal log / register.

A refusals log / register will be kept at the premises, and made immediately available on request to the Police or an
"authorised person”. The log will record all refused sales of alcohol and include the following:

¢ theidentity of the member of staff who refused the sale;

* the date and time of the refusal;

*  the alcohol requested and reason for refusal;

e description of the person refused alcohol

Public Safety

The safety of the public is the premises licence holders number one priority. In addition, Video Illusions Ltd will liaise
directly with individual Agencies should this be appropriate. The venue plans have, and event plans must, be developed to
meet guidance under the Event Safety Guide (HSG 195) and Managing Crowds Safely (HSG154).

Prevention of public nuisance

It is Video lllusion Ltd’sintention to cause minimal nuisance to local residents as a result of any event. However, the arrival
of several thousand people onto a rural site does have the potential for disruption, in particular noise. Video Illusions
Ltdwill work with the council, venue and local residents to ensure appropriate noise control levels are put into place so as
to minimise noise leakage and nuisance to neighbouring properties.

Created by Theo Smith | ‘Parg éssu@:l'?j/ll/ml? 17



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground
MonksHill
Showground

Protecting children from harm
External Event Producers will be obliged to risk assess and clearly detail their process for accommodating minors safely.

Section 7 — Emergency Procedures

The following is the minimum an external event producer must comply with in order to run an event on Monks Hill
Showground. These are provided as a framework for the External Events Producer to develop upon.

Having received notification of an incident or situation the notification will be passed to theappropriate teamfor action via
Security Control. As all key perscnnel will be in communication via Control, all will be aware of problems as they arise and
develop and will be able to give input, offer assistance or facilitate co-ordination as the situation dictates.

Operational Alert States
To assist in monitoring the event, it is intended to operate a three-tier system. When raising the alert state therelevant
code words will be used to notify all radio holders.

GREEN Indicates that there is free flow both inside the venue and outside in the wider site, no problemsreported.

AMBER Indicates unusually heavy pressure on entrances/exits, no free flow and areas of crowd density over0.3 m2in
particular areas or a threat, i.e. bomb threat, fire or crowd disorder.

RED This would be effective immediately where any Amber state was confirmed by Security / Safety Officer,or on advice of
the Police, that the initial problem indicated as becoming uncontrollable or confirmed threat,fire, bomb, or structural
collapse, were known.

7.a. General Fire & Evacuation Instructions

CONDITION AMBER
In the event that an Amber condition is declared, the Event Controller would activate the following:

1. Inform Head of Security of the incident. Inform all relevant parties of the exact area and natureof threat. Radio
silence to all parties not involved in incident.

2. If necessary, ingress will be suspended and information given to waiting members of the audience in theentrance
queues to prevent disorder.

3. Evacuation standby will be issued to all teams. The entrance door Supervisors to prepare to clear their areasin
readiness for egress.

4.  Where the situation is contained, Condition Green will be declared to all parties and a “stand down” given.
Allparties to resume normal duties and radio silence lifted. Where the situation is confirmed as serious by
theHead of Security the action is escalated to Condition Red and a “stand-by to evacuate” is issued to all
radiousers.

DECLARING AMBER ALERT
The first message issued in this event will be:
“WILL THE TECHNICAL DIRECTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE PLEASE CONTACT THE EVENT OFFICE”

This is a warning that the alert evacuation procedure is on AMBER. All staff to stand by radios and waitfurther instructicns.

CONDITION RED

The persons designatedas being responsible for halting the show in an emergency will be: External Event Producer’s Event
Manager or Head of Security.When the incident is considered as very serious and has been confirmed as such, the External
Event Producer’s Event Manager and her management team assist the Policein implementing their plan to deal with the
incident.

EventControl will work in support of the security team and emergency services under the co-ordination of thePolice.

In such circumstances Event Control may be re-assigned by the senior Police Commander as theForward Control Point
unless it is compromised by the incident.

DECLARING RED ALERT

This message in this event will be:

“THIS IS AN URGENT MESSAGE. WILL THE TECHNICAL DIRECTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE PLEASECONTACT THE EVENT OFFICE
IMMEDIATELY, | REPEAT, IMMEDIATELY".

Created by Theo Smipléeﬁig 16816(1 03/11/2017 18



. Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground
MonksHill
Showground

This is a warning that the alert state has gone to RED
1. All exits and entrances to be cleared and made ready for egress
Loud Hailers are deployed to assist with evacuation
Customers to be directed away from the threat and the incident area to be secured
RV points to be staffed to ensure swift direction of Emergency Services to the incident
Designated person(s) to halt the show and an agreed public announcement made to the audience
Security Controllers to receive direct instructions from Security Control
All Security staff to assist with evacuation, including artist evacuation from backstagelf the alert state alters this
will be communicated by Security Control to Security Staff and the EventManagement Team via Radio.

bralti ol Sl sk o

The decision to evacuate people from the venue to a designated Safety Area, to be determined on site withrespect to the
incident, due to fire, structural collapse, bomb threat, public disorder or for any other reason willbe taken by the
Operations Manager after consultation with the Event Management Team.

Should evacuation be deemed necessary, the Operations Manager will direct the P.A. to announce thefollowing message
(or words to this effect) to the public:

“DUE TO UNFORESEEN CIRCUMSTANCES THE ORGANISERS REGRET THAT THE EVENT CAN NOLONGER CONTINUE. YOU
ARE, THEREFORE, ASKED TO LEAVE THE VENUE IMMEDIATELYTHROUGH THE NEAREST AVAILABLE EXIT. THANK YOU”

Prior to any announcement to the public being made, an immediate message will be given to ALL staff torendezvous at
designated exits. The Security Response Teams will assist in directing the audience to thenearest emergency exits.Security
staff on duty inside the site will assist the public from those locations into the emergency evacuationareas as directed by
the control room. They will also facilitate the arrival of the emergency services andensure that they are directed to the
location of the incident and are able to work without interference. They willwork to prevent panic and take other action
asappropriate.

Security and stewards will prevent any re-entry without specific permission from the main control room. Thiswilll only be
forthcoming following consultation with the blue light services.

Members of the public will not be allowed to collect belongings until this has been authorised by EventControl (following
consultation as above), if one part of the site is being evacuated care must be taken toensure that this does not create
crowd build up at another point in the site which may well still be operating.

Part Evacuation

Where CONDITION RED is declared within a controlled area i.e. bag search, the activities may or may not behalted so as to
reduce the possibility of panic. However, the area will be severely restricted until CONDITIONGREEN is declared. Persons
within this area may be evacuated toward other areas of the site or venue.During any CONDITION RED no public
admittance will be given to the overall site. Once the eventsite has been given GREEN status, full public admittance to the
event will be given.

Full Evacuation

Once it has been decided that a full evacuation is necessary, it will be carried out as per agreed procedures.Emergency
evacuation strategy should recognise empirical research into crowd psychology during escapefrom disaster i.e. t1 (time to
interpret) + t2 (time to move)

7.b. Evacuation Routes

The External Event Producer must supply documentation covering the unlikely event of a full or partial evacuation, which
details where security and stewarding staff should position themselves, where the muster point is and where the
emergency blue route is, as well as all crew’s individual responsibilities, for example technical crew turning on working
lights and powering down any special effects or non-critical power supplies.

The head of security will meet the emergency services at the main entrance from the public roads and inform them of any
injuries or persons requiring medical attention.

Security and Stewarding staff will remain within the muster area until the all clear or call to stand down hasbeen given.
This call will only be issued once the Officer In Chargehas liaised with all concernedparties.Due to the large nature of the
showground, it is acceptable to consider internalevacuation from other areas.

Additional instructions may be as follows:
e Security to assist with information points in the event of unruly patrons upset about full/part evacuation
¢  Direct any casualty information to Event Control.
e  Vendors not in immediate danger are to remain in situ with their unit.

Created by Theo Smith | pagé556c93/11/2017 19



Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground

MonksHill
Showground

° Ensure no vehicle movement on site, with the exception of emergency services.

e No re-admission to the venue unless authorised by Local Authority and Event Control.

e All other staff to report for roll call, once directed to do so by Event Control

e  Security to maintain / preserve evidence until Police are ready to take over affected area. (The security
contractors should have a Crime Scene Preservation Policy)

e  Security teams to be re-deployed to assist in other areas once roll call taken.

e  Direct additional emergency services to the required areas where / when required.

° Maintain crowd control in muster / public RV points and reassure patrons

7.c. Show Stop / Emergency PA Announcement

On any event there will be a sound system that will be installed with the capability tomake emergency announcements.
The security supervisors for each area will have radios with noise control headsets and additionally the stage managerswill
have radios on separate circuits.

Should a show stop be required, the instruction will come from EventControl to the security supervisor who will then
inform the stage manager to halt the show and make anannouncement over the sound system.

Within the production team, a number of designated staff will be authorised to make immediate show
stopdecisionshowever, all decisions must be made with reference and agreement from the Event ManagementTeam.

In ALL cases, Event Control must be notified as to the action being taken, and will enact procedureaccordingly.

In the event that the Head of Security receives instructions from the Event Control to evacuate, appropriatenumbers of
Security will be deployed to the areas to be evacuated and the teams on exits will be instructed toopen the doors and
ensure that any obstructions have been removed from the path of the crowd.

Music/shows will be curtailed, announcements will be made via the P.A. system and Security will direct thepublic towards
the nearest exit and/or away from the danger area, the crowds will then be marshalled away from the entrances/exits or
field gates to prevent these areas becoming bottlenecks.

The event security team will be respansible for evacuating and clearing the affected area
Show Stop Announcement:

“DUE TO UNFORESEEN CIRCUMSTANCES THE ORGANISERS REGRET THAT THE EVENT CAN NOLONGER CONTINUE. YOU
ARE, THEREFORE, ASKED TO LEAVE THE VENUE IMMEDIATELYTHROUGH THE NEAREST AVAILABLE EXIT. THANK YOU”

CODED MESSAGES REPORTING DETECTION OF A FIRE
Never use the word FIRE on the radios; it may cause alarm if overheard by the public.

The code word for a SMALL FIRE that does not require immediate fire brigade intervention is MR ASH. (Thisis a fire that can
be dealt with by suitably trained staff immediately available using no more than one fireextinguisher).

The code word for a LARGE FIRE, ie a structure is MR PUDDING. The location of the incident must be given as precisely as
possible.The Security for the area will immediately evaluate the situation and commence evacuation of the areaaffected
and deploy any fire fighting equipment available at that location.

7.d. Reporting Detection of a Suspect Package
Never use the word BOMB on the radios; it may cause alarm if overheard by the public.

The code word for detection of a suspect package is MR CASE.

The precise location of the suspect package and as full description of itas possible must be given. Ensurethat the
notification is made as quickly as possible but do not use radio or mobile phone within 100m ofpackage.

The External Event Producer’s Events Manager and the Head of Security will evaluate the package and if necessary,
escalate thesituationto the Police. Ensure that the package remains under surveillance and is not disturbed until
theappropriate authorities investigate.

When assessing a potential suspect package, staff should use the HOT protocol:

H — HIDDEN — Has the item been hidden from view? Has it been placed in a discrete location?

0O — OBVIOUS — Is the package obviously suspicious? Are there signs of wires, tape, batteries, ticking etc?
T—TYPICAL - Is the object typical for it's environment? Does it appear out of the ordinary?

Created by Theo Snﬁé\.fés'én 176ued 03/11/2017 20



: Venue Safety Management Plan | MonksHill Showground
MonksHill
Showground

Evacuation Radii For Suspect Devices
Briefcase 100m, Suitcase 200m, Car / Lorry 400mSecurity will assist in the egress of guests from the immediate vicinity and
ensuring others do not enter thesite. Security will then follow instructions from Police with regards to cordon distances.

7.g. Assembly Point

The assembly points for each event will be decided through the External Event Producer’s risk assessments and Bespoke
Event Management Plan, which forms an obligation as part of the dry hire conditions. Typically the assembly point will be
Field 6, 7 or 8, with one of the other fields taken as the emergency blue route.

7.h. Nearest Hospital

Inthe event of any injuries being sustained within the event footprint, an appointed first aid facility will be present during
the occupation of the site, provided by the External Event Producer. The nearest accident and emergency hospital isKent &
Canterbury Hospital, Ethelbert Rd, Canterbury CT1 3NG, UK, which is 11.3 miles or 21 minutes drive away.

References
The Event Safety Guide — A Guide to Health, Safety & Welfare at Music & Similar Events, HSE, HSG195
Gallowglass Health & Safety: Event Management Planning
A guide to the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013
Five Steps to Risk Assessment: A step by step guide to a safer and heathier warkplace, HSE
Maintaining Portable and transportable electrical equipment, HSG107
Management of Health & Safety at Work Regulations 1999, HMSQ
Safe use of lifting equipment. Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998, Approved code of Practice and Guidance, HSE
Safe use of work equipment. Provisions and use of Work Equipment Regulations 1998, Approved code of practice & guidance, HS
NASC Guidance Note 5G40:00 - The use of Fall Arrest Equipment while erecting, altering and dismantling scaffolding, national access and
scaffolding confederation
Work at height regulations 2005, a brief guide,
Construction, Design Management Regulations 2015; roles and responsibilities
NEBOSH General Certificate in Occupational Safety and Health
SIA & Level 3 Working as a Private Security Operative in the Executive Sector

Created by Theo Smith | \@algésu? T/ll/ZOl?’ 21



Page 72



¥1/80 annoax3 Alejes pue yjesH ay) Aq paysignd ayejdwa) Aojjod pue JusWSSaSSE YSI paulquIoD)
oopeie|dLia]-Adij0d-pue-1UBISSESSE-4SUASH AN AOB oSy MMM//:dny 0} 0B ajeidwa} Sy} 4O UOISISA aAnoelaiul ue 186 o]
JoppupnTAob esy MmMm/7:dny (suonenbey sesusinoaQ snosebueq pue seseasiq ‘seunlu] jo Buipoday) YOAQQly Japun pauodal 3iom je yjjesy ||l pUe Sjusplooy

: S| 3004 JUapIaD
82140 9)IS Je 1§ suep, Bupyiom u) HRIERD] BLY0CG IRy

20O SIS 1. % SUuep Bupjiom u) :pajeoo| S| Xoq ple-isii4
8310 Ule| (uoneooy) 1e pade|dsip si Jaisod me| A1ajes pue y)|eaH

"Aaljod InoA umop ajiim 0} aaey j,uop noA ‘seakojdwa 8Al) UeY) Jome) oAy NoA J|
"aBueyo seouelswnollo JI Be ‘pilea aq Jabuoj ou Jybiw 31 Juiyy noA ji Aoljod JnoA maiaal pjnoys noA

44021410 ‘@leq Yeoslium areq (1ehoidwz) , :paubls

Jauuew ajes e ul Buiyiom ale s10}aB1jU0D saouelsqns Jo asn/ebelols

pue seakojdws ylog ainsua |im aH "yans jo sousiiadxa Bupiom Uo paseq jeuonoun; sijuswdinbs ajes alnsua pue ‘Ausulysew pue juswdinbs queld ulejuiew
aInsua ||im ay ‘sonsiboj ayis Jo abieyd u ays pue sBuiping ‘soio ssoloe Buiiom Jabeueyy aug YBOSYYM PIAEQ pue apiroud ‘suonipuod Bupiom Ayjesy pue ajes uijuiep
S9 n_mcoamm_-_so?aﬁw@

-211}-80B[dNIOMPIN'ACE MMM//-SANY (1B JUSWSSISSE sl I

ue|d uswabeuew InoA yyim diey puy ued noA Juspioul Juesyiubis Jayjo 4o agy
feyes Jusae ul papnjoul aq 0} Agijod 8)iS “senpaooid UOHENIBAS 811 3)IS Ul PAUIR]) PUB PaUlRl} Py 1814 10)38110 YEOBHUM PIABQ JO 8se2 Ul uoljendeas — sainpadold Asusbiawe Em_‘:m_a@
11°J

o

suol}puod Alajes pue

selunpoddo juawidojersp pue yoeqpss) 'sUIBoUCD U0 Ssakcjdwse yym sjeyo aoej-c)-a0e) Aleq 10jaa11q §eO8)YM plaeq Yijeay Aep-oj-Aep uo seshojdwa yym }nsuoo pue sbebug
3IoMm sy} op o} jusjaedwos ale seakojdule ainsue o} ‘Buiuie

sainsesw Buiodal pue swa)sAs yiom uo sdoysyom pue Buiujel eys-ug 1023410 YBOSYIYM PIAEQ ejenbepe pue ‘UOJJEWIOU] PUE SUOIIONIISUI J23]0 9PIAOIY

ade|dylom ey} ul sysl Ajajes pue yjeay ey BuiBeuew

Apopio pue pasjuefio ‘Apj ale yiom a)ls pue aSNOYBIEM ‘80140 UI0g SINSUS § SJUBLISSESSY YSIY MBIAGY 10198110 "Ye03)IUAM PIARQ Aq yjeay ||l pereja-3Iom JO SOSBI pUB SJUBpPIDdE JUSASIY

Slill/oweN

(¢op 0} Buiob noA aue jeyp) sjuswebueliy/uooy 1o Ajjgisuodsay Aoljod |essuab jo jusweirlg

{1se1s Jo ssquuapy)

aonoead ojul Ind si Aaijod siy3 Bulinsus Joy Ajiqisuodsaa Aep-o03-Aep sey }eoallyp piaeq
{(1aBeuew lowaguahojduiy jo awieN)

Kyejes pue yyesy oy Ajljiqisuodsal [euly pue jjesano sey )eoallym piaeq

110} sjuswabueul e Aoijod |eseusb Jo ju ayj si
{Auedwioo jo awey) [a17 suoisnjjj oapip rE A TR 10 jUsWsIEIS sy St sIyL

Aaoijod Ayajes pue yjjeaH




1yBiay 1e BuiyiAue ssaooe 0} SIay)0 1o} palinbal
JI 8jqe|iene Jappe| dais e yum JyEiay je palnbal

Salnjoel}

)8
‘suoljelooap dn Bumynd
‘'sepjays doj uo Buipy —

HRO3MUM PIARQ "ON ylom Aue seysjdwon uewdhpuey paiyenb Ajgeyng pue Buisinig asnes uea Jybiay Aue woyy sjie4 | WbieH 1. Bunjiop 20O
p|o Jeak e uey} JIUN JBWNSU0D UlBW 8L}
ss9| Buiaq apisul sjies Juawdinba ‘sBewep| o} yaeq Buiuonoun) pue ade|d Ul 8q 0} paydayd Usaq
ou s[eaAal uonaadsul a|qiSiA pue $1a400s AUe | ||B SABY SUCHAISUU0I YU T ‘paje|nsul ajgqnop pue Jy
Buipeopianc jou sijuawdinbs ay) asneoaq| el AQFZ Uo meip Jamod Jamo| e s juswdinba 1sop
Ing ‘[ewndo aq Aew jusludinba 1o Jo *100}} 38U} 4o piay s Bulges Buunsus pue salyo mau $8|qea Buiuonaunyew Jo pasodxa (Bunsel 1vd)
JL0Z/LLIL0 210Z/L L0 YeoalUM PIABQ | 158} | ¥d 8|Buis e suonenBes mau ypm suifup|  ayy Joy Juswdinbe [eaiyoele meu Bunasyjed Ajuauny | ybnoyy painful Alsnouas aq Aew sIO)SIA 5 JEIS uonna0.28|3 1300
"8jpuey Auo syoalqo b Joj sanjsus 213 Wuswdinba
0} Aneay oo} Jeadde Jo oo| 18y} s1oslgo ubiH "o1e salanap Bunos|oa usym swa)l Aaesy "Jaded jo sauanlsp B 'sjasigo Ayngjhaesy 2010 ‘Jaded Jo
U0 MOU Woi4 ¥eosliypm piaeq W 01 A1} Jou pinoys Asy ey yels puisy Jayjo pue Jaded jo sexoq Jodsue.l 0} pasn Asjjol Buipuey woy uted yoeq 1o ssunful ysu yeis | Buipuey [enuep o0
‘AlBieipawiwi <t
paJo)s sausAllep ‘sAemyem ul Ya| N~
labeuelp sox0q ou Be 'iea|d seale ylom deey yeis ()
Jojuow 's3|qe9 Jo spes| Buijien oN o
0} Josiatadns ‘g||ids uo Bs ‘papasu ‘saiejs Buipnioul ‘| [|om seale ||y 'sabe|ds uo dijs 1o s198[qo Jaao din mla
LL0Z/L L0 U0 MOU WOl ‘yeis ||| usyouy yes ul Buidesyasnoy Jeyeg| Ino pewied s Buidesyesnoy poob [eiauss) | Asyl Ji pednlul 8q Aew SIO)SIA pue Jjels sduy pue sdi|s Y
usym Loym £MsU sIy} JoJjuod éSplezey
auoq Aq uonoy Ag uojoy | 03 asja BuiyjAue op o} pasu nok o ¢Bulop Apeauje noA ale jeypp éMoy pue pawley aq ybiw oyp

3y} aJe Jeym

LLOZ/LLILO :JusWISSISSE YSH JO 3)eQ

p37 suoisnjjj ospIA :oweu Auedw o)

‘ssauisng anoA o} 1saso]2 sjdwexa ayj asooyd A|dwig *(SBIPNISESEIHSH/HN AOD 85 MMM/ aNU)

apink [njesn e spuswssasse ysu ajdwexs ano puy Aew noj "pasinbai uaym pue se uonewlojul sy} ajepdn pue malaaa A|1ses ued nok os ejejdwe) siyj aAes pue Julid ues noj
"}ins 0} a|qe} ay) a39jdwos pue ased noA up saijuold |eau sy aJe Jey) spaezey ayy Buifyuspr Aq enunuoa ‘ssauisng inok oy Aldde JyBiw siy) moy je 3oo

‘(sseuisnq paseq-adyjo ue wouly usye} st Anus sjdwes ay}) pejoedxe S| Jeym ajeJISN||I O} PJEZRY UCWIWOS € 104 Aljus ajdwes & Buipnjoul Aq NoA Joj JUSLUSSaSSE YSi aU) JO PaME]S SABY SN

‘umop BuipAue sm o] aney 1,uop noA seafojdwia aAl UL Jama) SABY NOA J “JUSLLISSISSE YSU B 19NPUoD 1snw steAojdws [y

JUBWISSOSSE YSIY




HeaalumM pireq

‘0N

'suonoe
113y} yum sanbes)|oo sjepdn 0} YOS uoneadde
BSN [|IM JISIA B I3Ye 9210 3y} o} Buiuinial jou Jeig
“891J0 $S0JB Paleys ale SIaguinu JoBju0d Yels |8

pue Alelp 221J0 paleys ay} ul sjielep ysia Bunum peig

8010 8U) Ul suoje BupLom ajiym
10 S201j0 Sjualo Buiisia usyp) “Ba ‘e1o ey}
JO N0 IyM yyeay |1 Jo AInful Jayns pinoo Yeig

Bupyiop suoT 1y

LLOZL L0

AE0SIUYM piAe]

paje|dwod ale Juswssasse ysu i bu
ay) Ag Alessagsu Se payuapl SUoloe aInsug

"Bulp[ing 821140 10} pUE BSNOYBIEM U)Oq

1o} s8)n01 uonEnodeAd pue sajoljod JO papulla) ale
JJels aInsua sulieje allj Jo $308Y0 Apjaam pue Buipjing
auy} Uy juasald sajuedwo? |jg ssoioe Aoljod paaibe

ue ele sainpasold uojenseas spim-Buipiing 's|ge|ieA.
ale siaysinburixe aJi ‘soe|d Ul SHUN UoNDalep Bl a1k
8l8U} JUBLUSSISSE 4SI 811} S,pIOJPUB| BY) Yym BuiIopn

suIng 0 UOIB[RYUI BYOWS
woly saunful [B3ey Ja4Ns pinoo yjeys ‘padden J|

all4 :sBuipyng % 890

YeO0sHUM piABQ

ON

‘sBuipue}siapunsiw

Jo sBuinBsiw Aue aieys o) yejs oy

Ayunpoddo uado pue Aojod BuiAng-nue ue Bupnjour
801}J0 B} $S0I2€ Joadsal [enjnwW e S| 81y }iom

1e Buiusddey Buy) Aue Jnoge Aseaun Jo |lamun Bules;
ale fay) )1 s10sinadns o) yiey Apuaiuno ued yeig
saljijiqisucdsal pue SaNp JIay) puejsIapun o} Jelg

9)e ‘sjou Jiayy Buimouy jou ‘Buif|ing ‘|ouod gol jo
¥9B| SB UaNs $10J0B) A Pajos)ie g pinoo Jels |y

ssang

L1021

HEOSHYM piAeQ

senssi Aue Ayyuspl pue

swiajqoid pioA. 0} Juawissasse Jejnbal no
Aues o) s1esn dojdej puillisy "asn Jeindwiod
0} pasjull aq Aew jeyy saey Asy) ued Aue jo
JaBeuew sy wiojui o} ale Asy) 1ey) plo} aq
0} JJBIS "dySY dn pamoj|o} ale sjusLussesse
WwoJ} suonde paiuapl jeyl yoay

“Jeindwos wouj Aeme syealq Jo 0} anuuoI
1Je]s aInsua o} Jojuow 0y siosinedng

‘8SNoWw pue preogAay ‘usslas ‘uonels Burjoop ypm
pasn aq pjnoys dojde| ‘82110 Je Pasn USYAA 82110
o) Aeme asn 1o} JUBLLISSASSE IS UMO N0 ALED

0} paulel} siesn doyde "pajj0u0d S|aAS| 8SION Usaios
uo JyBif [ednjeu [04u00 0) MOPUIM Je Spuljq 8jqelsnlpy
"pajjolpuod Ajgeyins aunjeladws) pue Bunybin

“Runnae Jo sbueyo 1o syeslq Jenbes spnjoul 0
pauueld Y10\ ‘S19SN ||B 10} POSSASSE I8 SUOIJE)SYIOM
paleygS "Usalds ay) Uo suopos|el pue alelb

pioAe 0] pue ainjsod poob ainsus 03 }es juswdinba
pue uoije)syiop ‘Bunybil se yans juswuolAug

Hom 8y} 1o aumyuiny ‘Juswidinba Ba ‘ainjes) ylom o)
abueyd Aue Je 1n0 palLIed 8 0} JUBLLISSSSEY "2010
auy} Jo seale Buneussye ul pjey Guieq sbunesw yym
syealq Juanbaly pue paxelal Bupnjoul JuswuoAug
}IOM B SE [|oM SE pleoghey pue asnow ‘sieyo

10 8210y2 ‘J0JUOW Sjesedas B palayo ale Yels ||y

"1ood s Bunyby|

ay) Ji Bia 1220 os|e ueo seks al10s 1o sayoepESH
"SJUBWIUOIIAUS }IOM JO SUORRISHIOM paubisep
Apood woyy 1o 9sn sadoidw] Jo BSNIBAC WO
‘sulle /spuey Jiay} o} Ba 'seunful Jo YoJWLOISIp
‘uied pue sws|goid aimsod ysu yeig “Alanoeul
Jo spouad papusixe ui buibebus yels soujo |y

Page 75

wawdinbg
uaalog Aejdsiq g Ainluj
ureng-aniiaday 2olO




SALINJOA
Jejnbal 0} suelojuyoa) weyshs jo Apgisuodsal
pue SLW8JSAS pUNOS JO $323U2 ‘Yels

10 UONBJO! ‘JBIS YSI-1e 10} SIopusyep Jes
aney o} Ayunpoddo ‘sseuaieme Juswabeueuw

sbn|d Jea yym papiroid pue paiiuapl 4su je
Aienoied eq o} pelspisSu0d YBlS ‘pepesu seinsesul
2AI}03]0Jd B} pUB SYSU BSI0U Ul paulel} yels ‘papiaoid
seale JeInp) “seale Asiou pue Jeinb ussmiaq pajelol
4els "joques Jedosd pue aoueleq ainsua o} swaysAs
punos Jo %oy Jenbay ‘joeloid jo spuewap pue

asn u aoeds Jo 8zis 1o} awnjon sjeldoldde o) swajshs

Aunaas pue yeis Jeq ‘rg Apenaned
‘y|Si1 Je oq 0} pawunsse Je)s suolelado [y 1SN
pnoj 0} aunsodxa wuej-bucy woyy efewep Bulesy

LL0Z/LLILO YeoalYM PIABQ 3s]0U Bpnjoul 0} uonanpu; pue Buiuiel] | uni o} ueRIUYas) WaisAs o JaauiBua punos palent Aelodway Jo yuauewlad Jayns bW yeig 3SION [JUaAT %} BUS
wnwiuiw e o} |jejjoo} asnoyaiem buidaay
pue ubisap juana aanjoaye ybnoiy) ejqissed se yonw
JoE yiom psulep | se ejeledes Jdey sueujsepad pue sejolyen “Ajpaloays swoogysisew Ag paysnio Buiag
1o} pasn A|uo sajaiyan pue Buinip aioeq|  elefiABU 0) SBOIYBA B|CBUS 0) JUBIOIYNS SSJ0E pue ‘sao1yan ay) woJj Buye; sjdoad Jano Bule;
pauueld 8q 0} S| $8[91U3A Jo asn ‘1abeuew so|sie ‘shembBueo) “saw |e Je way) ynm skey deay | sxonl) ‘way) wody Buyje; s1aslqo Uy Buleq siopsia 20UB[egIajuNoD
suonelado yyim sl Ados e se ||am se salup 0} psjonisul siaalg “1ebeuew suonesado ybnouy) pue Jejs ‘syoalqo/seoiyan Jayjo ojul Buiyseso 2 dM3IW Yog
||2 Je Way} uo asusdl| sy} aAey 0} sieaup | Auedwod yum piooas uo Buiuiely peaoid pue ejoiys 8jolyaA ‘ajdwexs Jo} ‘Woly pasnes aq ued | ‘syonu 1 Jo uonesad
L10Z/1L1/10 Neoslypm piAeq |IB ®pnjoul 0} 08piA uoianpul ue Buiuiel] | 8L Jo 8sn ay) 10} Jus}adwiod pue paulel siojesado ||y saljijele) }s1om Je Jo saunjoel) se yoans saunfu :2)s % sbuip|
"aseyd png Buunp ajs uo
fiunyiom Jo asnoysiem Buuaius ||e Aq pasn S| JBamoo) %
aA0a101d 'sebe|is Jo abielois ‘Buiyoel o abewep 108(qo sjuawaAow BunCr
"8)IS U0 Jeamjoo} sanosjold Joj Aissaosu Aue podal JJels payipow useq Jou sey pue paued | Bules £g yonas j Ainful snouss Jayns Aew ays | pue Buryoel woij mﬁmmv.
2L02/LLIL0 YEORUUM PIABQ apn|oul 0} 0aplA uononpul pue Buiuiel | SPEO| 8Y} 10} 8|qBYNS aq 0} paubisap si Bupjory uofasnoyaem ayy ul uosiad Jayjo Aue Jo yeig | Buye :2us 9 sbuiping
Buijpuey jenuew jo
inoney up pasn s jueld sjqeanjoeld Ajqeuoseal alayp
*sanpayds uoponpoid ay) ela pajuatusidul st yaiym
uoneuysap [euy sjuswdinba o] 8s0jo se Sa|IYBA
Buipeo| spisbuole ‘speo| ayl aleys pue speo| ay) sjoalgo
y4om 8)is Jo suonpuoa | dn yeauq o} sjdoad sjdynw £q 1no paiied saliaAIep plemyme jo Aneay BuiAes Buny) Apeinbal Buipuey
LL0Z/LLILO ¥ROBNUM PIARQ [[B BUINO 0} 08pIA Uonanpul pue Buiuies | AYIs Yym asnoyalem Ul pakojduwa xoni Jipod | )i uled yoeq wody Jagns pinod Jeis uononpodd |1y | [enueyy :as % sbuiping
‘siabeuew Aq 1no paleo si
suoljenyis ul einsodwod pue safiARoe Jo maiaal Buiob
-UO PUB 8Ji} UO SUCHEIEND SYE)S PUB SI0IOBIUCD
Jo Adoo e sey JaBeuew suoielado ‘abpep 1001 woly Buijey
“Buiuresy sy ypm aui| Ul sassauIBy Jsaule-||ey 1o 10 sa1njony)s a|gejuncwap Aleiodws) bunosis
Jutensal ypm safieo-uew Js|puey-a|s} 1o sieyaid Ausyo 3liym wswdinba Buy Jo sqing Bulbueya
‘slappe| 8sn 0} peajsul pue ssnij 1o sainjonys ‘Bupjoes aJium ‘ssnuy/Bupioes Buiquufo Jsjiym (13 Asuy 1yBiay woyy
¥eO3}YM PIABQ "ON quiIp JaAsu 0y suonangsul Jous uenb ale Jeis |y | J seunful [eje) usAs 1o 819A8S JaYNs pINod YRS s|le4 :2us % sbuip|




‘plezey |enuajod e

ping} Jazey yym sabejds dn Bujuesjo pue aal A1p yum
s8n0|6 SE Uyans Jdd Jo AlIsseasu ay) jo aleme spelw
oM JO swis)sAs ajes Buimojjoy wauy jo asn ‘syonpoeld
U} 10 ¥SU 8U} Ul pauled} siayiom AuQ “palinbal

UBU} YIS UO S| [BLUBJEW BIOW OU pUB 8usladxe

Joud yym sjenpialpul jusiadwan Aq psjpuey

sl ‘paunbas uaypp "o|gissod a1aym siuslalnbal
Juana Jo Jno paubisap AjjeaidA} s1 @91 Aip pue saulysew

Buiyieaiq pue asou ‘seka
0} UoNe)Ll 8SNED UBD SISIW pUE S8Wnd 'ad|

sfioy

210Z/L1/L0 Yeosjlyp piAeq | Se siyl apnjoul o) oepia uononpul pue Buiuies) | Boj 'siazey ay} o} $58008 sARY S1ayIom paules AluQ | Alp Bulpuey woly sbewep uiys Jalns Aew LIS | pue 8oL JusAg § 8)Ig
G69SH uonealand OSH Yim eoueldwon
puUE JuaWssasse ¥su |n} ‘uosiad jusjedwos
piezey [enuajod Aq anuan Jo Aljigenns Jo Juswissasse ‘Ajuoyine Apadoidun
J10Z/LL/L0 Yeoaluyp piABQ | SB SIYL 9pNjoul 0} 08pIA UORONPUI pue Buiules | Buisusol| Jo uoissiwiad ay) Jnoyym pasn ag o} JoN | pasn y ebewep aka 1ayns Aew oignd pue jeig SJ9SET UBAT B PR
JUBLLBJE)S poylew pasibe-aid e yim N~
aUI| Ul s|lenpiapul paiiila Aq pajejdwod aq 0} seoinep @
J1abBi-anowal Jo uone|ielsu| ‘sienpiapul Jugjadwod O)
sjussaud | pue paousuadxa Ag pasn A|Uo pue J0JOBAUOD pasusdl| ©
Jl MOY/Op UBD ) Jeym pue piezey |eijusjod pue [euls}xa ue Aq patenoa AjjeaidA) ‘Aioyine olued wu_cco&omm
LL0Z/L1/10 Heoslup pIAB | S SIU} apnjoul 0} 0apIA uoionpul pue Buuies | Buisuaal] Jo uoissiwad ay) Jnoyim pasn aq o} JoN pue Joedw J9a.1p ‘ucisojdxa ‘el wol) Jabueq RUET =R
*SUOIJOUN) [BJIUBYIBW
sjuasaud Aue pue Juswanow s|a1yaA wol Aeme Joddns
JI MOY/Op UeD JI Jeym pue piezey |enusiod pijos e 0} payoejje pue jybudn paio)s aq skemje suinqg abeyes|
21021110 YeoallUM PIABQ SE SIY} apnjaul 0} uonanpul pue Buiurel | o} - sig)siuen jo abeio)s pue uonejuaa elenbapy | Jo ssunlul uopesoyns [eie; Ajenuaied ysu Jelg 20D ‘JuaAl B AlS
sBnup Jo yuup Jayye
J0 2ousnijul ey) Jepun Ajsnolago ajdoad o} panas
Jou syl 'siepinoys ue ajdoad/Buins pmolo/Buinp
abejs afieinoous 0} Jou pjo} sjoe pue Spueq oAl ‘BalE
Aue u) papiwad jou Buipmosoiang) ‘swea) Ajunoas
'sBrup Jo yuup Jeya | 0} $S800E JESIO BINSUS 0} INjanLse.ul we)sAs ope.
J0 @oUBNjUI Y} Jepun Apeajo uaym syuLp | Aem-z ajelissedau slusna Jebie ‘syuaas Aue Joj saijod
panias Buiag Jou sjdoad pue 218 ‘Buiaip abejs Uiim Buiteys uojewuiojul ‘yels Aunoas pabpeq vig
BuiBeinoaus Jou spueq any| ‘Buipmeioisnc | ‘paulel) Jo Jequinu sjenbapy ‘anbojelp ‘soug)sul sy
ou apnjaul 0] ‘suonoe BuneaeiBbe Jo jusjoin | eyy u; 'ybnoiy} suoienys asnyip o} sydwsye s|geus o)
1o} anissqo pue Jodal jo Aojjed Auedwos | Ajeeipaiuwl iaBeuew ays 1o AINDas s)is-Uo o) Jansal Bunybiy ur dn ybnea
L10Z/LL/L0 }eosliypn piaeq apnjau] 0} 08pIA UORONPUI pue Bujulel | pue siexew ajqnoy} [erueiod jods 0} pauled; Jjeis | Jo psjnesse Ji Ainful snouas ysi oljgnd pue yeig | sousjoip uaAg g &g




Page 78



Chris Hilis

From: GGPC Clerk <clerkggpc@gmail.coms
Sent: 17 April 2018 11:17

To: Chris Hills; Licensing Resource (SBC)
Subject: Monks Hill Farm

Good morning, :
Graveney with Goodnestone Parish Council wishes to make representation with regard to the above
licensing application. Our objections are as follows:
1. Traffic management problems on all approaches with severe congestion likely for long periods particularly on the
largely single lane approach roads such as Waterham Road, Monkshill Road, Highstreet Road and Seasalter Road which
are unsuitable for high volumes of traffic together with the additional hazard on queues forming on the A299.
2. On strest parking is likely on all approach roads and privately owned land causing further problems for other road
users and local residents who will also face restrictions in using these roads on event days thus impacting on their
freedom of movement,
3. A significant increase in traffic driving through Graveney and Goodnestone with Seasalter Road and Head Hill Road
unable to deal effectively or safely with the likely volume of cars and other event traffic, particularly in connection with
the size and nature of these roads with tight bends and known aceident black spots.
4. The problems with light pollution emanating from the event and car parking areas. _
5. The problem with neise pollution emanating from the event areas, traffic using the local roads, and members of the
public arriving at and leaving the site on foot.
6. Can Video Ilusions Ltd and Mr Whiteoak demonstrate their experience in operating event sites of this nature and
scale. '
7. How would they control the under 18°s from obtaining alcohol from others once on the site or members of the public
bringing alcohol on to the site with them. ‘
8. How would the security measures prevent unauthorised access around the perimeter of the site by members of the
public.
9. We are concerned about the proposal to seek a licence to sell alcohol every day from 12.00 without there being any
specitic contrals over the areas on the site where this could take place.

We believe thess objections fall within all four of the licensing objectives,
I would be grateful if you could confirm receipt.

Many thanks,

Bex Ratchford
Parish Clerk

Page 79
1




Page 80



Chris Hills

From: Licensing Resource (SBC)

Sent: 01 May 2018 08:53

To: Chris Hills

Subject: FW: Monks Hill Farm, Monkshill Road, Faversham

From: smuteham@googlemail.com [mailte:smuteham@googlemail.com] On Behalf Of Harnhill Parish Council
Sent: 30 April 2018 19:28

To: Licensing Resource (SBC)

Subject: Monks Hill Farm, Monkshill Road, Faversham

Hello

[ am writing on behalf of Hernhill Parish Council to register an objection to the proposed premises licence
for Monks Hill Farm.

The Parish Council object to the application with consideration to the prevention of public nuisance in the
immediate area which does not have the relevant infrastructure to protect the public and local residents from
crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance caused by the proposed activities of films, music and dance
performances, alcohol and late night refreshments during the hours proposed in the licencing application.
There are significant concerns for local residents about the volume of noise generated from proposed events
at the site, causing disturbance to the quiet nature of the rural area, along with associated traffic noise from
vehicles attending the proposed events. The location is rural and associated noise from the site can
sometimes be heard as far away as Hernhill village centre and Seasalter, depending on weather conditions.

The Parish Council also object to the application with consideration to the protection of public safety, in
particular the safety of people/vehicles accessing the site and the safety of local residents who use the roads
around the site. The site is in a rural location with limited vehicle access and a lack of contingency routing
for vehicles if the railway crossing is shut or the Thanet Way (A299) is blocked. There are concerns on how
emergency/safety vehicles could access the site in the event of the railway or A299 being closed. The roads
in the immediate area suffer badly from potholes and impact the width of driveable road surface for local
residents. If additional vehicles are introduced on these roads (for aitending events at Monkshill) then the
increase in road traffic would adversely affect the condition of the roads causing long term concerns for
local residents who use the roads on a regular basis.

The Parish Council has previously given information to Barbara Westmacott at KCC with concerns over the
use of the site, in particular the vehicular access including the following comments, which can be
considered in the objection to the licensing application.

+ Railway crossing between Hernhill and Graveney. What would be the contingency route if the railway crossing was
shut for either an emergency or scheduled engineering works?

» Condition of Highstreet Road, Monkshill is already in a very poor state near Waterham Business Park (heading
towards Monkshill) and there are significant potholes/drainage issues which will only be worsened by an increased
volume of traffic (fine if KCC have the budgest to fix them.....but that's always an issuel)

+ Consideration for when accidents/closures on the coastboundThanet Way oceur and the additional traffic that is
then diverted through Monkshill/Graveney/Seasalter to gat around such closures.

+ Bridge weight limit (i think there is one?) for the bridge between Monkshill and Graveney, just after the railway
crossing when driving away from Monkshill, Would only certain vehicles be able to use a route going In this
direction and what would happen to larger/heavier vehicles.. . whers would they go? It's a narrow bridge for 2 cars!

Page 81

i



»  Consideration for farm access/traffic in both Monkshill area and also Gravenay. The rural roads are not wide and
traffic blockages caused by non-local drivers who are not capable of driving appropriately on rural lanes may
impede on farming activity. Prudent to check with the local farms perhaps?

» Graveney is the main access to Seasalter, which being a seaside location fs busy in the summer. The roads to
Seasalter are already busy on warm, sunny weekends without any extra events. Whilst the fact that the roads are
busier is not a concern, trying te potentially implement a one way system may exacerbate the issue significantly.

s Graveney is heavily used as a cycle route and there are a significant number of cyclists using this, especialiy at
weekends. This slows down the traffic greatly as overtaking is not often possible due to narrow roads with poor
sightlines. There is often a trall of about 15 cars at a time in peak season, waiting to overtake. Again, this may
increase any trafiic issues relating to a proposed one way system.

« Tumning off the Thanet Way on to Waterham Road by Mallards Farm would not be suitable as there is no slip so
cars have to break on the dual carriageway to access the furning.....accidents?!

Sarah

Sarah Muteham
Clerk to Hernhill Parish Council
07740 708139

This email and any files transmitiad with It are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or enlity to whom
they are addragsed. If you have raceived this email in ‘error please notify the system manager. This massage contains
confidentfal information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not
disseminate, disiribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immadiately by e-mail If you have receivad this e-majl by
mistaks and defete this e-mail from your system. If you are not the intendad reciplent you are notifiad that disclosing, copying,
distributing or faking any action In relianca on the confents of this information is strictly prohibitad.

Page 82



Swale House, East Street,
Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT
DX59990 Sittingbourne 2

Phone: 01795 417567
www.swale.gov.uk

| Making Swale a betlfer place

Licensing Act 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM FROM OTHER PERSONS

This representation is made by other persons of the premises to be licenced as detailed
below:

Your name
George Bull
Organisation name OR Myself
Name of body you represent
Postal Address Seasalter Road, Graveney ME13

Email address

Daytime contact number

Name of premises you are

making a representation about Monks Hill Earm Showground

Address of premises you are

making a representation about | onks Hill Road, Faversham, ME13 9EH

Your representation must relate to one of the four licensing objectives (see note 4)

53y
Y
o)
) P e 83 20 . e 13
Are you registered to vote? ag % INVESTORS ;’ o g?’ G%Q:D
www.swale.gov.uk/all-about-voting Y INPEOPLE 95 Award




Licensing Objective

Yes/No

Please detail the evidence supporting
your representation OR the reason for
your representation. Please use a
separate sheet of paper if necessary

Prevention of crime & disorder

Yes

Large numbers of visitors through
Graveney, some on foot, would highlight
opportunities for loitering and house
burglaries. Traffic through Graveney
already exceeds the 30mph speed limit in
many cases and speeds in excess of
60mph have been measured.

Public Safety

Yeas

The road through Graveney to the
proposed site is narrow and for most part
there is no footpath, so that an increase in
traffic would constitute increased danger
to pedestrians and horse riders in the
village. Visitors from Faversham would
inevitably use the more direct through the
village rather than via the Thanet Way and
Monks Hill Road.

Monks Hill Road itself is only single frack
so that congestion is inevitable which
would affect traffic through Graveney and
limit access by residents and emergency
vehicles.

Prevention of public nuisance

Yes

Graveney is a quiet country location,
especially in the evenings and night time.

The proposed site is situated at the top of
a prominent hill, so that loud open air
music and fireworks would be heard for a
great distance, including Whitstable,
Seasalter, Graveney, Hernhill, Dargate,
Yorklets and Goodnestone. Frequent
concerts as proposed would severely
disrupt the lives and sleep of many local
peaple who like to sit outside on quiet
evenings and do not wish to go to bed
until after midnight, and then have to wait
until the traffic leaving the site has ceased
before they can get to sleep.

Wildlife on the nearby RSPB sanctuaries
and animals on farms would be affected,

Are you registered to vote?

Page 84 £ oo 2oL

S A8 O’O’\

&% INVESTORS & &
Y, A

www.swale.gov.uk/all-about-voting y o INPEOPLE  9spe®

GOLD
Award



as would household pets that are troubled
by noise and fireworks.

The road through Graveney carries many
large farm vehicles, especially in the
summer months and evening times so that
traffic increase would adversely affect
productivity and safety.

Protection of children from harm Graveney is on the National Cycle Route
Yes 1 from Sittingbourne to Canterbury via
Faversham and Whitstable. This is a
popular route for families with children on
bicycles and an increase in traffic would
increase risk both to them and child
pedestrians in the villages.

SIGNED:

DATED: 24 May 2018

NOTES:

1. If you do make a valid representation you will be invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing
Sub Committee and any subsequent appeal proceeding. If you do not attend, the Committee

will still take into consideration ariy representations that you have made,

2. This form MUST be returned within the Statutory Period, which is 28 days from the date the
notice was displayed on the premises OR the date specified in the Public Notice in the
newspaper.

3. Representations can only relate to the four licensing objectives:
i. Prevention of crime and disorder
ii. Public safety
iil, Prevention of public nuisance

Protection of children from harm

.E.

Page 85 W ry, 20 ¥l
| [ > . . L/ -
Are you registered to vote® N INVESTORS

| |
www.swale.gov.uk/all-about-voting % # INPEQPLE s  Award }

AE.QO
)
Q
&=
Q




4. Your representation will be passed to the applicant, to allow them the opporiunity of
addressing your concerns. Your representations will be published in the report available o the

Licensing Committee, which will be made public.

5. Please note that the name and address (excluding house number) of any person that has
submitted a representation will ordinarily be disciosed to the applicant and are a matter of
public recerd. Swale Borcugh Councii is unable to accept or take in to account any

anonymous representations.

6. Please return this form, when completed, to:
Licensing Section
Swale House
East Street
Sittingbourne
Kent
ME10 3HT
Or by Email fo: licensing@swale.gov.uk

253
o Y
S, 20 ¥k,
} Are you registered to vote? Page 86 £ INVESTORS §,‘/\/§?’ cop
= A v
www.swale.gov.uk/ali-about-voting % o INPEOPLE s Avard



Chris Hills

R D R R e
From: Licensing Rescurce (SBO)
Sent: 24 May 2018 09:01
To: Chris Hills
Subject: FW.: License Objection - Monkshill Farmn

From: Donna Waters [§
Sent: 23 May 2018 1a:
To: Licensing Resource (SBC)

Subject: License Objectlon - Monkshill Farm

Dear Licensing Department

Re: Application by Dave Whiteoak T
Premises: Monkshill Farm, Monkshill Road, Faversham, Kent, SRS,

We are writing in objection to the ahove license application.

We live at CHRSEEENSNNSRI . | is

-Iooking at the entrance from the road. ‘
We firstly want to highlight our disappointment and astonishment at the way in which this application has
been managed. When the land owner, Guy Botting, first bought the farm he introduced himself to us
explaining that it wasn't in his interest to upset or annoy his neighbours and he would keep us informed of
any plans for the farm, Then in January 2018 we were surprised to receive a letter from an events
management company, Video lllusions, stating that they were working with the land owner on "Monkshill
Showground, a new events space” and they “were locking to build relationships” and “wark with
residents”. We then heard nothing further so you can imagine our dismay when the first thing we knew
about the above application was a post on Facebook by a concerned resident of Graveney, posting a
picture of the application which they had seen posted at the end of Monkshill Road, almost at the junction
of Seasalter Road. Having seen this we looked around the immediate vicinity and found the nearest notice
some approx. 300 yards away from our property, going away from the farm and nothing in the oppaosite
direction until opposite Monkshill Bungalow which is even further distance. It was only after speaking to
the licensing officer on 8" May that a notice appeared opposite our property and on the farm board.

BES 0 the left of the farm when

We have multiple reasons for objecting to this application. The negative impact granting any such license
would have on our quality of life and disruption to it and our well-being. We choose to live in this rural
location and undisturbed community, which is completely unsuitable for a venue that would require such
a license.

The lands in question already houses a children’s nursey, traffic to support such a lice3nse would
signiticantly risk those children. The application would allow activities on any day of the week, at any time
day and night.

The surrounding area and infrastructure is unsuitable for such a venue. The roads are often only wide
enough for ane vehicle and certainly not any large vehicles that would be required to set up and dismantie
to support such events. (n addition the road is often usad to decant vehicles iollowing issues on the Thanet
Way, which often results in altercations and vehicles needing to reverse to allow others to pass. One such
recent incident prevented us from reaching the local farm shop due to the volume of traffic and the lack of
two way access. Any additional traffic from this application will8o%ly increase the frequency of such

age



incidence, on both the local roads and the Thanet Way, the main route to the SE Coast, The company are
talking about up to 8000 people and associated access to the site. In addition the roads are not built for
this type or valume of traffic, they regularly flood, have potholes which will increase with this traffic.

The farm is also unsuitable for the traffic this will invalve. The entrance is single access and since the
nursery took residence we have witnessed on a number of occasions lorries coming and going and not
being able to enter or exit as a result of their size and the limited turning circle.

There are no local public transport options other than cars or taxis, so the 8000 people would generate a i
similar volume of traffic, not to mention the added issues with people trying to walk away from the venue,
disruption the local resident, risking injury from passing vehicles and the unmanned level crossing or

Thanet Way. The local community is largely farming so farm vehicles often go up and down the roads, so

would not be able to pass other traffic on this scale.

The local area there is already Faversham Showground, which is underutilised but in a much better
position for similar events with easy access from the Thanet Way and less disruption. Then there is Mount
Ephraim that has onelarge event a year, which we hear from that distance so we are very coricerned
about the noise disruption and disturbance that this cause.

We haven't even broached that the land is not suitable for these events regularly flooding the fields and
our property.

We look forward to your consideration

Kind regards co o . - |
Donna and MarkWaters ' o SR '

Sent from Qutlook

Pagze 88




Chris Hills

Froimn:
Senti;
To:
Sdhject:

Licensing Resource (SBC)

03 fay 2018 09:30

Chris Hills ‘

FW: New Premises Licance for Monks Hill Showground = Objection

Erom: D M K Jolincock

Sent: 02 May 2018 21:52
To: Licensing Resource (SBC}
Subject: New Prerhises Licence for Monks Hill Showground Objection

Dear Sir

We wish to raise an objection to the aforementioned application on the
following grounds.

Prevention of Publie Nujsancé

We understand from the documents submiitted by the applicant that the Venuc
will be hosting large events on the site with the potential of: up ta 50060
visitors, given that this will be accomparied by amplified music coupled W1th
a liquor licence from 12 noon until midnight at least 6 days a week and most
weeks of the yedr gives us real grounds for concern.

This is a small, quiet rural comumity which is unequipped and unsiiitable for
the hosting of such events and the activity proposed is not comensirate with
the location preposed. We feel that the noise pollution generated by tis venue
would be a constant threat to rural life and inappropriate to the demographic
of the village community.

Tublic Safety

The proposal and scale of the development would generate unacceptable
levels of traffic on rural roads especially given the capacity of the venue and
the absence of public tt ansport links which would nessesitate access to the site
by private cars. The road leading to the site is, in places, merely a single track
road and not designed o carry such heavy traffic movemerits, moreover,
there is no pavement along Monks Hill Road leading to the site Which would
pose an unaccepfable safety risk to any pedestrians or cyclists using this
route.

Given that this is & popular route off of Sustrans, National Cycle Route 1 and
18 subsequently heavily used by cyclists gives us grave concems for public
safety.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Again, given the scale of the vehiculer movements and the fact that this is a
premises with & licence to sell alcohol gives us real concern for the potential
for drink driving offences which would be further exacerbated by the fact that
the access and egress to the site can only be achieved via narrow un-
lluminated rural roads which are unsuitable for such traffic volumes. In
addition there is increased potential for speeding and unsafe driving offences

Page 89




with the added prospéct of a Hkelihood of a large amount of litter to be
deposited thought the countryside enroute to the venue.

General Note

It is our opinion that the preposed venie is totally unsuitable for the activites
detailed in the licence application and would be detrimental to both the local
community and the environment.

A small rural community is not suitable for a development of ihis size and
scale, the venune would not serve the local community and represenisa
cominercial operation geared solely towards profit with no tangible positive
benefits for the community in which ftis located.

The environmental impact of such a:scheme would be both large and
detrimental to residents and to rural life, with this in mind we would assume
that the auﬂmrity would need to have carried out an "Environmental Impact
Assessment” in relation £6 this: apphca‘tmn we would be grateful if you cotild
confirm if this has been done and lso whether or not the dev gloprent is fully
compliant with any local planmncr rewulatmns that would apply to

the preposed site.
Yours Faithfully

Keith Beney and Delores Johneock

tér- Road
Gravensy
Faversham
Kent ME13 IR

Paée 90




Application for New Premises Licence — Dave Whiteoak, Monks Hill Farm, Monkshill Road, Faversham,
ME13 '

i wish to object to the above application on the following grounds:

Prevention of crime and disgrder — when a large number of outside visitors are introduced to a ruraf
area, for the activities that are being applied for, there will be an increase in disorder and the potential
for crime. The participants may be fusled by alcohol and will be moving late at night after mass
entertainment events and will be moving in large numbers, using narrow lanes which will become
congested to the point of gridlock.

Public nuisance — public nuisance will occur because of the production of noise and light pollution in the
open air, in a quiet rural area. | believe this nuisance would apply to the whole of Graveney and wider
surrounding areas. It will also be at all hours of the day and night. The traffic entering and leaving the
sight will be bottle necked by the narrow lanes on to which the site fronts, and in the surrounding routas
beyond the immediate site. Large numbers of vehicles will be using narrow, ilf surfaced, unlighted and
twisting lanes where vehicles cannot pass easily. Local business already cause some difficulties because
any vehicles bigger than a modest car can only be passed at certain critical points. No one way system
would be feasible, because of its interference in local business activity and local resident movement.

Public Safety ~ pubtic safety will be jepodised by the extraordinarily increased volume of traffic
anticipated. As nﬁentioned, all the roads around the site are small, restricted width and of uneven
surface. There are frequent squeeze points and blind curves. The road through Graveney is a national
cycle route (number 1) and takes substantial cycle traffic. There are few sections of pavement for
pedestrians. The Graveney Schoo! would have difficulties at arrival and departure times. The bus service,
which is invaluable to many residents, could not be diverted for a one-way system. The village has a high
proportion of elderly residents and it is vital that emergency services have ready access at all times. The
access from the A299 would be unable to handle the volume for such huge events. Any queuing for the
site will rapidly spread back onto the A299 dual carriageway, and become a huge accident risk.
Marshalling on the site and at its entry can not be sufficient.

Mr Malcolm Rogers, Seasalter Road, Graveney, Faversham ME13

27" April 2018

Page 91




Page 92



28 April 2018

i ‘Seasalter Road
? Graveney
o Faversham
SRR Kent MELS S

Licensing Officer
Licensing Department
swala Borough Council
East Strest
sittingbourne
Kent MELD 3HT

Ra: Proposed Activities at Monkshill Farm, Monkshill Road, Faversham, ME13 9EH

Déar Sir / Madam,

| am writing to oppose the licensing application made at the above address. The proposed
development will severely and detrimentally impact the local area and, in particular
Graveney villaga. My reasons for opposing are as follows:

1. The propnszks for mrusic and other everits will create pbise poliution in a village that
is very quiet and in a very rural location.
a. The location is situated on a hill and noise polfution will be unavoidable due
to its crientation.
h. The proposals ta sell alcohol until midnight 7 days a week will result in nolse
and potentially more accidents when visitors leave the everit due to the poor
road system leading and from the location.

. The location is on a narrow country lane and the anplicant proposes.to introduce a
cne-way road system during these events, taking all traffic along Seasalter Road
through Graveney to the A293,

a. This would take all traffic past my house and restrict movement of our viliage
and its residents which is unacceptable,

b. The location is just a short distance from the A299 and the traffic should
enter and leave the location via that route, not take them through d much
longer and more intrusive route via Gravenay.

c. i the applicant teals this would impact their visitors then they should pay to
improve the road leading from the A298 so that the impact is not extended
beyond their area.

3. Based on your licensing application process it is evident that the applicant has not
followed due process:

Page 93



tunderstand all local residents should have received a notice directly through
their letter box. 1live 1.1 miles from the location and have received nothing.

I understand notices should be prominently displayed at regular intervals. !
was not aware of this application until someone fram our village saw a single
notice posted on a fence which is in the middle of nowhere.

The applicant has already posted detaits of their first event at the end of May,
despite not yet having licensing approval. ‘

It is clear from these examples that the applicant has no intention of
following the correct process. As a result, ! have no confidence that any
promises to monitor and restrict noise and traffic will not be upheld and that
we will have a continuing battle with him to address the impacts that willbe
suffered as a result of his plans.

Based on these reasons | ask that you dacline this appfication.

Kind regards,

| Marie King

Page 94



Chris Hills

it
From:
Sent:
To: Licensing Resource {SBL)
Subject: manks hilt
Attachments: 123.docx

dear sirs

please think about this before you accept application, i have lived in T e L R
for only 14 years, and in that short tims you have let S&A HAVE MORE AND MORE POLY
TUNNELS AND LAND TO RUIN OUR AREA,The infrastructure of highstreet road is under to
much pressure with HGVS 24 HOURS A DAY now this person wants to add te this at all
‘hours.This is not a show ground it was a farm.

Please say no

mark Benham

Page 95




Page 96



Swale House, East Streat,

Sittingbourne, Kent ME10 3HT

DX58990 Sittingbourne 2
Phone: 01795 417567

www.swale.gov.uk

REPRESENTATION FORM FROM OTHER PERSONS

Licensing Act 2003

|

This representation is made by other persons of the premises to be licenced as detailed

balow:

mark benham

Organisation name OR
Name of body you represent

residents of hernhill

Email address

Daytime contact number

MName of premises you are
making a representation about

monks hill

Address of premises you are

making a representation about

Monks Hill Farm Showground 7?2?77

monkshill road me13 Seh

Page 97



Your representation must relate to one of the four licensing objectives (see note 4}

Please detall the evidence supporting your

Licensing Objective Yes representation OR the reason for your
representation. Please use a separate
sheet of paper if necessary

Prevention of crime & disorder

yes drunk and disorderly

Public Safety small road, quite area

yes

Prevention of public nuisance

yes noise very late at night

Protection of children fraom harm

SIGNED: m benham
DATED: 04/05/2018

Page 98



Chiris Hills

From:

Sent: 12 Mdy 2018 23:35

To! LECERSEHQ Resource {5BC)

Subject: Fiv: objection to Licence/change of use Monkshill farm MEL3 9EH

On Saturday, 5 May 2018, 21:32, §

Mr & Mrs R § Wraight

Monkshill Road
Hembhill

Faversham

5% May 2018

Dear Sit/Madam,

We are writing to you regarding the change of use for the following propetty,
Monkshill Farmi, MOﬂk'Shill Roa, Hé’l‘iﬂiiﬂ, Faversham, Ketit, ME13 9EH.

Monkshill farm want to develop the site ifito an évents showground and apply for various licences, ie
provision of films, recorded music, dance, late night refreshment and an alcohol licence, these hcences
cover the entire week.

As a resident of Monkshill Road, we are strongly opposed to this change of use, and their proposed ideas to
make the road one way, to help with inevitable congestion problems , - they do not appear to have
considered the local busineises, or the local résidents or the fact that agricultural vehicles use this road
every day

During the harvest months there are hiige agricultural vehiclés carrying hay going up and down the road
throughout the day , do they expect the tractots to use the Thanet Way? (due to theni proposing the road be
made one way).

Monksill Road , is in a very rural hamlet of Hernhill , a majority of the road is single lase, the road is
already in a poor state of repair due to the traffic that currently uses it.

Monkshill Farm is one mile from the Thanet Way, when an accident oceurs on the Thanet Way, the drivers
divert around the problem by driving through Hernhill and Graveney, normally at speed, due to the drivers
not knowing the local area, which in itself is dangerous, whenever this happens it causes congestion along

the whole road, it is often at a standstill outside the school which is further down in the village.

;Page 99




At the Thanet Way end of Mornikshill Reoad, there is an industrial estate of local businesses and also Large
greenhouses, which employ seasonal workers, who are constantly walking up and down the read, there are
né pavements or streétlights atany point aleﬁg Mbpnkshill Road, which is dangerous to pedestrians, if the
traffic incredses, dug to Monkshill Farms events, this will not oniy endancrer loeals, but also and visitors to
the events.

There would be inoreased traffic due fo vehicles cartying aqmpmenta to thess events, and Taxis and their
proposed shuttle buses taking revellers home.

Due to aretail outlet being built just off the Thanet Way at Whitstable, the traffic is frequently backed up
along the Thanet way, and has recently been right up to the BP Garage due to people turning offto go to
Whitstable, this trafficunderstandably incieases in this wammermosths due to people visiting Whitstable.
All these points would make it extremély difficilt for the emergency services to attend residents _Qr
propetties aloig Monkshill Road, especially as Morkshill Farm want to change the road to One Way.

If they did this, and there was an accidetit, or fite or any other emergency are they going to send an

e grbiANCE-OT fire- engine-areund-the-one-way-diversion?:

There is a railway crossing and a stone made single lane bridge along Monkshill Road, and we do not
believe that the bridge would be able to cope with increased traffic,

There is also a small village school in Graveney, in¢reased traffic, means increased pollution, and increased
danger to those 'children_, there is already enough traffic going through Graveney with The Proposed Cleve
Hill site increasing in sizé.

There are a;so Wi_de load vehicles that travel thiough Graveney which take Large Static caravansto the
holiday parks in Seasalter.

Monkshill Farmn site is in an glevated posatzon the larid is farmland, and is not suitable for this type of
venue, most of it is sloping , duefo-its position any noise and light pollution will be-magnified, it will travel
widely, which will cause disturbance to locals; it will also firther impact on conservation of this beautiful
rural area, it may have an impact on crime figures, due to there being more visitors and alcohol consumption
can sometimes lead to an incease in crime, there will be more mbblsh and mote recycling. Wherd are they
goinig to park 2000 or more cais?,

Farm gom_ﬁ to cope w1th _cate:nn?r ,ﬁ)r 8000 vmtors 72,
The Road constantly floods in one paiticular area, just down from the farm.

We would like to highlight, that there is already a perfectly adequate showground in Faversham, a couple of
miles along the Thanet Way, Faversham showground is significantly underused, despite that fact that it is in
a prime position, it has almost immediate access to the Thanet Way, the traffic can be diverted in and out of
a number of different routes, it eould be diverted over the Thanet way coast bound, or London bound,
through Boughton, directly orito the A2, or the Brenley corner roundabout which is ideal for controlling
traffic.

We feel that all these points are valid, and we ask you to consider them all, we also strongly believe that
Monkshill Farm is niot right site for such a showground.

Pleage confirm receipt of this email
Yours sincerely

Michaela & Robert Wraight

Page 100




——Eteh

-}%sékr:.%;ﬂ!

Near ?a\;}e;shafm

ME13 .
The licensing Department
Siwvale Borough coundil
Swaie House
East Street
Sittingbourne

Kent MELD 3HT

Cisar Sir/Madam,

Re: Application for a pew premises licence at Moakshill Farm, Morikshill Road, Faversham, Kent
MEL3 9EH - '

We would fike to strongly object to this proposal, We have very big concerns regafding noise
disturbance as wa live very close to Monkshill Farin, We have children and are very concerned that
allowing alcohol and music until midnight will affect our ability to sleep Aot doly with the music but
with people lgaving the event after midnight. | have looked into the sound company (Video
iNusions) wishing to fun the events and some of thelf past everris {if other locations) have been
heavy matal bands where the volume is a hugé concern of ours which would affect our quality of
life. fn addition, the Wraffic generdtion ¢aused by these events would also cause nolse disturhance
fate atnight and early morning when big events are being setup.

Secondly, traffic generation, highway saféty and road access would also be a big concern. Wonkshilt
Road is not suitable to two-way traffic along its entive length. tam really concarned that we would
have difiiculty galning access to our property at times when pecgle ara arriving to an event as tis
would cause queues along the road. Currently Monkshill road is used by farm machinery and any
lorties coming down the road always cause a hotd up. There was talk from the sound company of
making the road a one-way systern, This seems to be a ridiculous ides as it would mean residents
driving all the way through Graveney before we could head into Whitstable whare the childran
attend schoot atc,

Finally, the effect on nature consarvation is alse a big concern. These type of events will have an
environmental impact due to increase in rubbish {including plastic cups) being teft at the event and
thrown from the cars attending. The land next to Monkshill Farm is owned by the RSPB. Surely
noise disturbance will also be a big disadvantage to attracting the birds that the RSP wish to
protect,

We would be really grateful if you would take our concerns into conslderation when reviewing this
case.

Page 101




. Yours sincerely

Mr and Mi’SNem |

Page 102



28 Aprii 2018

. Seasalter Road
e : Graveney
Favérsham
bl Kent ME13 J

Licensing Officer
Licensing Departrrient
Swale Borough Council

East Street
Sittingbourne

Kent ME10 3HT

Re: Propaosed Activities at Monkshilf Farm, Monkshill Road, Favershar, MEL3 9EH

Dear Sir / Madam,

| am writing to oppose the licensing application made at the above address. The proposed
development will severely and detrimentaily impact the local area and, in particular
Graveney village, My reasons for opposing are as follows:

1. The proposals for music and other events will create noise pollution in a village tha’c
is very quiet and in a very rural location.

a.

The location is situated on a hill and noise pollution will be unavoidable dus
to its orientation.

Tha proposals-to séll alcahol until mldmght 7 days a week will result in noise
and potentialiy more accidents when visitors leave the event due to the poor
road system leading and from the location.

2. The location is on a narrow country [ane and the applicant propases to introduce a
one-way road system during these events, taking all traffic along Seasalter Road
through Graveney to the A2599,

d.

b

This would take all traffic past my house and restrict movement of our village
and its residents which is unacceptable. _

The location is just a short distance from the A299 and the traffic should
enter and leave the location via that route, not take them through a much
longer and more intrusive route via Graveney.

If the applicant feels this would impact their visitors then they should pay to
improva the road [gading from the A299 so that the impact is not extended
beyond their area.

3. Based on your licensing application process it is evident that the applicant has not
followed due nrocess:

Page 103




understand all local residents should have received a notice directly through

their letter box. |live 1.1 miles fram the focation and have received nothing.

l understand notlces should be prominently displayed at regular intervals. |

was not aware of this application.until someone from our village saw a single

notice posted on a fence which is in the middle of nowhere.

The applicant has a!reédy posted details of their first event at the end of May,
- despite not yet having licensing approval.
. ltis clear from these examples that the applicant has no intention of
following the correct process. As a result, | have no confidence that any
promises to monitor and rastrict noise and traffic will not be upheld and that
we will have a continuing battle with him to addrass the impacts that will be
suffered as a result of his plans.

Based on these reasons [ ask that you decline this application.

7

Page 104



Faversham Road
e m":ﬁwi Seasalter

Whitstable

kent CT5 [

29" Apfil 2018

Re Applicant: Dave _White’oak Of Monks Hill Farm , Monkshill Road, Monkshill Nr
Graveney Kent ME13 9EH

To whom it may concem

| would like to make a very severe objection to the above application

After experiencing an pvening last summer, when a music festival was held at Monks
Hill Farm which lies directly opposite and in clear view of my home, | am horrified to
be informed that Mr, Dave Whiteoak is applying for a licence to malke this a
permanent oceurence.

On this particular evening, running into the early hours of the morming, | could not
only dlearly hear the continual dreadful noise; vibrations could also be strongly falt
frofa it. | had very little sleep that night.

Eurthermore, if this application goes ahead it would ruin the peace and quiet which |
have enjoyed since moving here approx 30 years ago.

Inlight of this, | would most strongly object to Mr Whiteozk receiving a licence for
permission to be able to cause such a nuisance 1o all the inhabitants and visitars to
Seasalter.

Yours sincerely,

Mrs Sheila Hague

Page 105



Page 106



 Of Seasdlter |
A0 Faversham Road
‘Beasaller :

, ' Whitstable

Caravan and Chalet Park o Kent ;
' CT8 4BW %
Telsphone: (12273 272098

. | Fag: (01227) 266500
Femnaih wa}ﬁgﬁsi:ifsgasaiie_r@iaﬁﬁaiﬁiﬁss‘mas.s,mi i

F o mra Wehsite; wivw,waldensofseasalier.couk
o4t April 2018 .

Re Applicant : Dave Whiteoak s:)f'._Menks Hill Farm, Méhﬁi'shm Road;
Monkshill Nr Graveney Kent ME13 9EH

To whom it may concen

Wa would iikg to make a very severe ‘objection to the above application.

wa are a family run holiday *pa;z_'kj‘thajt'has :beén trading inthe ssmebqaﬁéh for
nearly seventy years. Qur park has one hundred and twenty holiday homes, at any
one timé we can have over two hundred people in residence, | -

- 'We pride :éur,s'e_ifyﬁ__s, on giving our mi?ﬁérs a qx_;{ei.-envircﬂmen’ifrﬂm which to _'en_jey-
tne delights of the local area. |

| ast surpmer; this peace a‘nd--tran_qgi;;tity was spoitt by a wh ole night of loud rnusic,
which resuilted ina fload of angry complaints from our residents, m;an.y“?}éd 1o sleep
at all. lbwas sosevere that we found ourselves trying to locate fhe source of this
‘horrendous and relentless noise, it was found to be on the premises relating 1o this
application. -

‘We can orlly assume that this was a rial for the farm before commencing a full
application, furthermore if this application were to be successfil, it would:
undoubtedly have a seriously detrifnental effect not only of our own business but
that of the whole local area. ' ' S

C_onsequenﬁy, in light of this, we would very riuch a'ppfecféat‘e.‘ haing kept informed, in
writing, at ali developmental stages of this application.

Yours sinceraly,

(Peter Hague) - —

Propristors; JOHN HAGUE & SONS LTD

DIRECTORS: § HAGUE. PJHAGUE
REG, OFFICE: 23 Hockerll Court, Lopdon Baad, Bishoo's Sigrtford, Harts, GRZ3 588
Calor Authorsed deaier VAT NO 272 4824 @a@@a@_@?mfam Mo.Ob 518785







Chris Hills

i
Frony
Sentd May .. 2225
To: Lizensing Resolires (SRO)
Subject: Monkshill Farm MEL3 961 New Premises Licence
Attachmenits: o Mignksil Road.docx

Christina Hills Licencing Officer
Please find attached out letter of objection to the above.
Many Thanks

Yours Sincetly
Susan.& Robert Wraight.

Page 109




Monkshill Rd
Waterham hernhill

The Licensing Dept Swale Borough Council

Objection to App-licé'tion for a new Premises Licence. Dave Whiteoak Monkshill
Farm Monkshill Rd MEL39EH

Dear sir

Monksill Road,, Is in a very rural hamlet of Hernhill , a majority of the road is
single lane, the road is already in a poor state of repair due to the traffic that
currently uses it.

Monkshill farm want to develop their site into ah events showground and apply
for various licences, ie provision of films, recorded music, dance, late night
refreshment, and an alcohol licence, these licences cover the entire week.

As a resident of Monkshill Road, we are strongly opposed to this change of use,
and their proposed ideas to make the road one way, to help with inevitable
congestion problems, - they do not appear to have considered the local
businesses. At the Thanet Way end of Monkshill Road, thera is an industrial estate
and also Large greenhouses, which employ seasonal workers, who are constantly
walking up and down the road, there are no pavements or streetlights at any
point along Monkshill Road, which is dangerous to pedestrians, if the traffic
increases, due to Monkshill Farms events, this will not only endanger locals, but
also and visitors to the events.

Also due to a retail outlet being built just off the Thanet Way at Whitstable, the
traffic is frequently backed up along the Thanet way, and has recently been right
up to the BP Garage due to people turning off to go to Whitstable, this traffic
understandably increases in the warmer months due to people visiting Whitstable.

Page 110




All these points would make it extremely difficult for the emergency services to
attend residents or properties along Monkshill Road, especially as Monkshill Farm
want 16 change the road to One Way.If they did this, and there was an accident, or
fire or any other emergency are they going to send ar amibulance or fire engine
around the one way diversion?

Mozikshill Farm site is in an elevated position, the land is farmland, and is not
suitable for this type of venue, most of it is sloping , due to its position any noise
and light pollution will be magnified, it will travel widely, which will cause
disturbanee to locals, it will also further impact on conservation of this beautiful
rural area, it may have an impact on crime fi gures, due to there being more visitors

and alcohol consumption can sometimes lead to an incease in crime, there will be
more rubbish, and more recycling, Where are they going to park 2000 or more
cars?..

We would like to highlight, that there is already a perfectly adeqiiate showground
in Faversham, a couple of miles along the Thanet Way, Faversham showground is
sighificantly underused, despite that fact that it is in a prime positioit, it has almost
immediate access to the Thanet Way, the traffic can be diverted in and out ofa
number of different routes, it could be diverted aver the Thanet way coast bound,
or London bound, through Boughton, directly onto the A2, of the Brenley corner
roundabout which is ideal for controlling traffic.

We feel that all these points are valid, and we ask you to consider them all, we
strongly believe that Monkshill Fartn is not the 1 ght site for such a showground.

Yours Siricerely

Susan and Robert Wraight

Page 111




Page 112



L aiau_gu;! ‘D,Qf;ﬁ:;,
Swako f%w%%\h Corvoer O
Ludele Houwne.

%L%r@-\ EQU!M .

@@k

e <

WW@ﬂé@ﬁgﬂ
Do S5,
[ weedd Nihe & Mﬁ,p,e,L AN fia Asz-qvwﬁ 1:1_
ou. oZco sl me'a’&" |

Vieheo |l iines LT vew 9
i & M-QL 41}2&,0 }\@—Q .L\uu-g‘ e %’ .;,\,{J

W"’@WIU’ (Y Fonin,

T‘L)\-J; 9N 1( e/l‘\(’oue.t{
; l‘*—M Qmw—fuﬂ %ﬂw% L b 1 '
OEJVHLC/LRI% o 9‘ ‘ll&_g LQMMUQB‘Q‘W

gJ-’ mw awd 2 e
38 3 Y
bhouaxd

i buaes b Al eadie

(M wo \,éu};l;f S Z)fu__ S0 e A6 occown &L

Of (N {W '\/@-/bm:zﬂ% 00278 M.&fa
o meokes f drives

M@»kaw:,e,
ﬂ— (}:n ﬂﬂ}\ nt\fﬁo

Cpeonp o ém;ﬂrﬁ T i _':!s -
b—\‘L“ @{/M-Qﬂ ’I'oa ewk

ZUIL Quautﬁ

TLJL WOVLL E’f d\z-w’)ed’__a wgmga_&o_ﬂ &EJ .

! vao oo N wod] be tm. b olote ‘%A | Pc:«Sa .

lGa. S L Wk b ( po® soblb K re.doee

ol [0 adayn  Teedhwologd -

Li&ﬁuw" —

) e weald.

‘@u%_ e ol Air ﬁ,ﬂk&

e s

Hu

%) ri:e,km_fi




Page 114

-



Mankshndd. ooo

Herrhb
Fenk
The heensing Peporkmants ver s [
G uwoade Bovrisud, Cancil 7
Swalde Hewpe, 16 Moy Zo18
Eunslt Stpan b
53%1}/}3 [o15, 88 SHT=

MEID BHT

Dear S0~ | Madam |
T e s e e
bo Monkshill  Fopm and strongly olpeck’ I tha proposed

A s v M

i

%@:@‘ﬁ vt o rwral m‘v"if“ﬁ\‘%w&? soupd CarMeg dh Bhere arl v
bourien fo covckain deo In skl ol we can cloarty hear
U aur gasdan . . \ |

There lhaog. Beln raueh on Gravenod M daaghied Mm
Che Farm L%,-%@lg;& Loduch brue cautech  Steeplass mﬁ?&%g L5
S ol et deubl uradine ., we could QQJ\%M%{{;{Q
wiikdrewl bhe peoposed 5 seuen s o ea R, Lt gt
cloburbana patentiod of this unacciptobe apphcation |

Dus_bothe proposed provioumnof dicbhdand e Freohmants
aruen days o-naee R vneb b dais b&@mw CFldre,

ol e T gt ‘l{\» g N

wodd e " st baven. bor botoved %kaifi’big Wk, pwse ol ko

g @:;u%ﬁ Peiy & Ehe maenandy”

Traffe accend _
Mabeshal Rood M@ O AU p@i‘::hﬂ@f‘i fs«wﬁtﬁ P,

’m«%&% Md£mﬁ mg placen | v nid s ukalble, f@f o vl
e brokfue bhakl B applicahion weuld g@f’w’"ﬁi@

e & badl Colgh | tlhal wdhionasaer Hhags 1an aced@nd, o

bhe Araq “Thou ks Wew ov™ o prdolam at bren) Carner wa,

are gFten wiakbl th exik purdlrive iy, due bo The shean

vliume @*é/ erse - bes - e L h”q{%lg 17 mﬁ mekggmmw a

O Caktviough b Fauorobeun / uoviksrabls. ekc,

Joure ssir)c@(\eltj}

MR BRI DAVISo N . MRS TACK 1 mﬂwﬁém

Page 115




Page 116



BOROUGH COUNCIL

&) Swale

MIDKENT ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SHARED SERVICE
MEMORANDUM

From: Julie Oates To: Licensing
Environment and Street Scene

Date: 15t May 2018

Our Ref: 18/504031/GENLIC

License Application :
Address: Monkshill Farm Monkshill Road Hernhill Faversham

| have assessed the above application and object to the application as currently applied
for on the grounds of the Prevention of Public Nuisance.

| have concerns that granting a ‘umbrella’ licence to cover all events held at the
proposed showground, including the larger music events, could result in noise and
disturbance unless carefully controlled. Anticipated problems include noise and
disturbance from amplified music and sound, ‘people noise’, mechanical noise from
generators, plant etc and also traffic noise and congestion in the surrounding area. The
applicant has advised that 8 fields can be let separately or together as event spaces.
This in itself could give rise to further problems as operators may try to compete with
each other in terms of volume of music etc. In addition further problems could arise in
the locality from visitors to the different events arriving at similar times.

All of these areas require specific controls to avoid unnecessary disturbance. Although
not located in a particularly built up area, there are pockets of residential properties
surrounding the site. The area is predominantly quite flat and open which will potentially
result in noise (particularly bass tones) travelling for some distance.

The information provided by the applicant to deal with these issues is not very robust,
which is disappointing bearing in mind the advice given at the earlier meetings. There is
very little reference to controlling noise levels within the Venue Safety Management
Plan. Section 5(f) makes some reference “As part of the premises license, noise
management restrictions will be put in place. The venue will undertake an acoustic
consultation with a specialist to determine the best structure to comply with the licensing
objectives laid down by the local council.”

There does not appear to be any definition contained within the application as to what
constitutes a ‘larger event’ — ie: those events to be held in June, July or August (and
various other special days throughout the year)? In addition there is no reference in the
application or documents as to the anticipated number of event planned to be held at
the venue. There needs to be a clear distinction as to what constitutes a smaller/private
event and a larger event and also some indication as to how many events are planned
each year.

The Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts provides some useful
controls in terms of suitable Music Noise Levels (MNLs) and maximum levels of

Page 117



bass/low frequency tones at surrounding residential premises and these should be
reflected in any conditions attached to any Licence granted.

It may be more sensible from a control perspective for the ‘larger events’ (potentially
concerts, festivals etc) over a certain capacity (to be agreed) to be subject to a bespoke
Licence following an individual application. These larger events are the ones likely to
have substantial entertainment and large attendance, and consequently may give rise to
greater problems. By having specific conditions relating to specific events, there is
inherently greater control by the Licensing Authority and other organisations over the
event organiser. In addition, it could be quite time consuming for officers to deal with
these individual larger events. If they fall under an ‘umbrella’ licence’, there will be no
financial remuneration for the time spent dealing with these events as the application
fee has already been paid.

If the panel are minded to grant the application as it's been submitted, Environmental

Protection would recommend that the conditions in Appendix 1 attached to this memo
are considered in order to reduce some of the impact of the proposed activities.

Please contact me for further advice or information.
Regards

Julie Oates
Senior Environmental Health Officer

Page 118



Appendix 1 — Suggested Conditions

1.

The Premises Licence Holder shall notify the Local Authority (LA) of the date of
any event with a capacity of xx people (number to be agreed) at least 3 months
in advance of the event. This will enable a decision to be made as to whether
to hold a meeting to discuss the event and any additional controls needed.
Each of the events referred to in 1. Above shall be subject to an individual Risk
Assessment which must be submitted to the LA at least 8 weeks prior to the
vent date. The event shall not take place until the Risk Assessment has been
formally approved.

At least 1 month prior to the event, properties within 1km radius of the site shall
be notified of the event and given a telephone number of a responsible person
who an deal with any complaints as they arise. This telephone number must eb
manned at all times during the event.

. Music Noise Levels at agreed noise sensitive premises shall be as follows:

a. Between 09:00 and 23:00 the MNL should not exceed the background
noise level by more than 15dB(A) over a 15 minute period. (Background
noise levels are to be measured as an hourly LA90 over the last 4
hours of an event or for the duration of the vent if scheduled to last less
than 4 hours)
b. For events with music ending after 23:00, the MNL may be reduced
further to a level to be agreed between the LA and event organiser.
c. Alevel of 70dB in either of the 63Hz or 125Hz octave frequency bands
shall not be exceeded at any time.
The Premises Licence Holder or event organiser shall be responsible for
monitoring MNLs at locations and at a frequency as agreed by the LA. MNLs
must be adjusted accordingly to take account of any changes in sound
propagation if levels in condition 4 are not being met.
The Premises Licence Holder or event organiser shall be responsible for

monitoring MNLs following complaints by a member of the public/local resident
and must adjust MNLs accordingly if they are found to exceed levels listed in
condition 4.

Records of all monitoring are to be made available to the LA upon request.
Fireworks must not occur after 23:00 or in accordance with the timings in the
Fireworks Regulations 2004. To minimise disturbance, the duration and
frequency of fireworks must be kept as short as possible and the use of loud,
explosive fireworks should be minimised.

Note: All measurements and monitoring referred to above must be undertaken in
accordance with the guidance contained in The Code of Practice on Environmental
Noise Control at Concerts)

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Kent
Police

Chief Officer of Police Representation in relation to an application for grant of a premise licence made
under Part 3 Section 17 Licensing Act 2003 (S18 Licensing Act 2003)

Details of person making representation

Name of Chief Officer of Police Chief Superintendent Smith

Postal Address: Medway Police Station
(Divisional Headquarters) Purser Way
Gillingham
Kent
ME7 INE
E-mail address licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk
Telephone Numbers:
Licensing Co-ordinator Geoff Rowley 01634 792733

Licensing Officers

Chris Hill 01634 792276

Clare Cossar 01634 792411

Diane Holroyd 01634 792343

Details of premises representation is about

Name of Premises: Monks Hill Farm

Address of premises: Monks Hill Road
Faversham
ME139EH

Date application received by

police

Date representation sent to 22/05/2018

Licensing Authority

All representations must be made
within 28 days of receipt of initial
application

The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. Part 4 Reg.
22,

The Chief Officer of Police has received an application for the grant of a premises licence
made under the provisions of Section 17 Licensing Act 2003, and under Section 18 of that Act,
asks the Licensing Authority to consider these representations in respect of: -

Prevention of crime and disorder

Public Safety

Prevention of public nuisance

XX | XX

Protection of children from harm

Is this a representation regarding the Designation of Premises Supervisor under S18 (9)
Licensing Act 2003? No

If yes complete the appropriate statement:

Page 121



Please give the reason for the representation and detail the evidence supporting it under the
appropriate headings:

This is a new application for a premise licence for a 60 acre area of disused farmland — with the intention
of using this land as a showground to run events.

The applicant has indicated that the site will comprise of a farm shop, restaurant, wedding venue and 8
large fields of proposed event space. The applicant has stated that the capacity of the site will be for up to
8000 people.

The applicant has applied for following:

Live Music

15:00 to 00:00 Friday
12:00 to 00:00 Saturday
12:00 to 23:00 Sunday

Provision of Films
1800 to 00:00 Thursday —Friday
12:00 to 00:00 Saturday — Sunday

Recorded Music

15:00 to 00:00 Friday
12:00 to 00:00 Saturday
12:00 to 23:00 Sunday

Performance of Dance
15:00 to 00:00 Friday
12:00 to 00:00 Saturday
12:00 to 23:00 Sunday

Late Night Refreshment
12:00 to 00:00 Monday — Saturday
12:00 to 23:00 Sunday

Sale of alcohol
12:00 to 00:00 Monday — Saturday
12:00 to 23:00 Sunday

The opening hours of the premises
12:00 to 00:00 Monday - Saturday
12:00 to 23:00 Sunday

It is clear that the applicant wishes to use the site of Monks Hill Farm for a variety of activities and events
covered by the Licensing Act 2003. Within the operating schedule of the application the applicant has
listed ‘classic car shows, folk festivals, horse shows, private events, drive in cinemas, weddings and
regulated live music events with stages. During meetings the applicant has stated that initially the
likelihood is that only a small number of ‘larger’ events will be held in the first year or two. Despite this
there is no mention in the application of the applicant willing to limit the number of larger events, the
concern therefore is that the premises licence if granted could be taken advantage of.

Kent Police are clear that the smaller, low key events such as weddings and drive in cinemas do not cause
great concern and could be a real asset to the area. The greater concern is in relation to the larger events
that would likely have a far greater impact of the licensing objectives. An 8000 person event for example

Page 122



will likely have a large impact on the roads and transport networks of the surrounding area. Access and
egress to the site is obtained via country roads with no pavements. The licensing objectives of public
safety and public nuisance are likely to be impacted.

As with any large event, particularly those that include the sale alcohol the risk of crime and disorder is
clear. It is therefore disappointing to see what can only be described as the ‘bare minimal’ listed by the
applicant in the steps taken to promote the licensing objectives, most namely the prevention and crime
and disorder. The applicant has listed matters such staff training for those selling alcohol, the checking of
age verification documents and the completion of refusal records. Theses although beneficial are more
appropriate to conditions for a small shop or restaurant, not an event space with the capability of hosting
events for up to 800 people at any one time. The applicant has made no mention in the license application
for how security staff will be engaged at events, what notice period Kent Police (and other authorities) will
be given prior to event taking place, how the venue will deal with drugs, or whether drinks will be served
in plastic/polycarbonate vessels. These are all matters that I would reasonably expect an event
management company to be considering and detailing, the fact that they have not causes Kent Police
concerns.

The applicant has stated that a CCTV system will be installed to monitor entrances and exits and other
parts of the premises to address the prevention of crime and disorder objective. Given the premises has
been described as 60 acre site, I presently cannot understand how the applicant would implement this. I
can only assume that the CCTV is intended for the restaurant and farm shop areas, and perhaps the main
drive in routes.

Perhaps the applicant may wish to give consideration to splitting this premises licence application so that
the restaurant and wedding space are licensed on one premises licence (which appears from the supplied
documentation to be the main ‘daily business’) and then the event space is licensed separately on a second
premises licence which can be more tailored to larger events.

In its current form the premise licence application in the opinion of Kent Police does not fully promote the
licensing objectives. The application appears to be generic and not suitable for a premises the size of
Monks Hill Farm. As such Kent Police are opposed the grant of this premises licence, however if the
licensing panel decide to grant a licence, Kent Police seek the addition of a number of conditions to be
added to the premises licence as detailed below.

Page 123



Kent Police seek the attachment of the following conditions to clarify those proposed in the
operating schedule, and assist in the promotion of the licensing objectives:

For any Event where the potential or anticipated attendance is greater than 500 people the

following conditions apply (1-24).

1.

The duration of an event shall not exceed 3 days in respect of any music event (these
periods exclude any period for camping and set up or break down periods). Music events
shall not exceed a cumulative total of 10 days during each calendar year

The Premises Licence Holder or their authorised representative shall attend Safety
Advisory Group (SAG) meetings whenever an event to be held at the premises is on the
agenda.

The Premises Licence Holder shall identify a competent event safety officer (‘the Event
Safety Officer’) for all events and circulate their name to the Licensing Authority and Kent
Police in order to provide a specific point of contact in relation to all matters pertaining to
safety, before, during and after events. The Event Safety Officer must have the
authorisation and an ability to act unhindered on any issues relating to safety.

Notice of Events

The Premises Licence Holder shall submit to Kent Police Licensing and the Licensing
Authority a proposed calendar of events at the premises. This calendar shall be submitted
annually in January detailing the events planned for the following 12 months. Any
additions, amendments, or alterations to the calendar of events shall be notified to Kent
Police, the Licensing Authority in writing (by letter, e-mail or fax) as soon as practicable.

For all events the period of notice to be given shall be 2 months prior to the proposed
event unless the event is booked to take place less than 2 months ahead in which case
the event would require special approval from both Kent Polcie and The Licensing
Authority

The Licensing Authority or Kent Police may in their absolute discretion require the
Premises Licence Holder to produce a specific Event Management Plan for any event at
the premises.

Any Specific Event Management Plan required shall be submitted to the Licensing
Authority and Kent Police no later than 2 months prior to the event in question or such
other period as may be agreed between the Premises Licence Holder, Licensing Authority
and Kent Police as appropriate

The Premises Licence Holder shall comply with the provisions of the Specific Event
Management Plan at all times during the event to which it relates.

Security and People Management

9. The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that a means of counting the public entering

and leaving the premises through any/all of the entries or exits is in place. The nature of
the systems of counting will be agreed with the Kent Police and the Licensing Authority.
The Premises Licence Holder shall comply with the agreed system.

Page 124



10. The Premises Licence Holder shall on request provide to Kent Police and/ or the Licensing
Authority figures for pre-event ticket allocation, such information to be supplied within 24
hours of any such request.

11. The Premises Licence Holder shall maintain a register of all drugs found or seized within
the premises and notify Kent Police of any such items as soon as practicable. Drugs will
be kept within a secure storage facility.

12. The Premises Licence Holder shall at all times during the event maintain the minimum
number of stewards / security staff as recommended in the events safety guide and as
determined through the Event Management Plan

13. A written risk assessment will be completed to assess the requirement for searching as a
condition of entry.

14. The Licence holder shall erect and maintain clear and prominent notices on the exterior of
their premises advising patrons of any admission restrictions.

15. There will be a security policy that outlines clear instruction and understanding of the SIA
door supervisors’ responsibilities at the premises.

This policy will contain:-

¢ how door staff prevent overcrowding

e supervise the queue to ensure that it is managed in a way that avoids rowdy,
unpleasant behaviour.
A procedure for door staff engaged in searching persons as a condition of entry

¢ to ensure the dispersal of patrons from the curtilage and grounds of the licensed
premise immediately after the end of licensable activities

e Prevent patrons from leaving the premises with open containers and bottles

e To provide evidence by written statement to police in any criminal investigation as
and when required.

Sales of Alcohol

16. The Premises Licence Holder shall prepare and submit to the Licensing Authority and
Kent Police no later than 1 month after the grant of the licence an Alcohol Management
Plan. This plan shall include:

a. Details of staff training, recording of such training and arrangements to provide such
records to Kent Police and Trading Standards

b. The manner in which the stewards / security staff will monitor the bars and the personal
licence holder will enforce compliance with the Licensing Act 2003

c. Confiscation of alcohol in respect of anyone who appears to be under the age of 18
d. In respect of any open field event or marquee used in conjunction with such an event
the sale of liquid refreshments, including alcohol only being made in polycarbonate

containers, plastic bottles, plastic or waxed paper cups.

e. A requirement that any glass receptacle found in the possession of any person at any
open air event or marquee used in conjunction with such an event will be confiscated

f. For any event with more than 2 bars the Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that there

is a personal licence holder for each bar in operation in addition to the designated
premises supervisor.

Page 125



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The Premises Licence Holder shall at all times comply with the provisions of the Alcohol
Management Plan (either as submitted to or modified by the Licensing Authority and Kent
Police in consultation with the Premises Licence Holder)

All liquid drinks will served in plastic or polycarbonate containers. All glass bottles will be
decanted into plastic or polycarbonate containers.

All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.
Training should take prior to an event taking place.

Training must include:-
a) Avoiding sales of alcohol or age restricted products to those under the age of 18.
b) recognising customers who appear drunk and refusing sale or supply of alcohol
c) knows the licensing objectives and have read and understood licence conditions
d) can produce licences/certificates/permits relevant to the premises in the absence

of licence holder/DPS

Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every six months or earlier if required

due to changes of legislation.

Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the nature, content and

frequency of all training.

Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing Officer and

authorised officers from the Local Authority on demand either electronically or hard copy.

A written refusals book will be maintained at each bar or outlet where alcohol is provided
or sold on the licence premises. This book will be bound and clearly marked. The following
information will be recorded for every refusal:

a. The time of refusal;

b. The item refused;

c. Name or description of person refused the sale;
d. Reason for refusal;

e. Name of staff member making the refusal;

The premises licence holder or designated premises supervisor must keep an incident
register.

Staff are to be trained to complete an incident book/records immediately after the incident
but no later than the end of their shift.

The register must be kept on the premises and will detail

« Day, date and time of incident
o Nature of incident
o Resolution

« Each entry is to be checked and signed by the DPS/Licensee no later than 1 week
after the entry has been made.

The register must be made available to Police, Police Licensing Officers and authorised
officers from the Local Authority on demand either electronically or hard copy.

Noise Management

22.

No amplified music is to be permitted unless a noise management plan, which has been
agreed with the local authority and Kent Police, is in place. The noise management plan
shall be periodically reviewed and or when significant changes occur in the operation,
building or event type or following a complaint.

Page 126



23. The Premises Licence Holder shall comply with the provisions of the Noise Management
Plan at all times during the event to which it relates

24. The Licence holder shall erect and maintain clear and prominent notices displayed at all
exits requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the
premises and the area quietly.

In relation to the restaurant and farm shop the flowing conditions shall apply:

25. CCTV will be provided in the form of a recordable system, capable of providing pictures of
evidential quality in all lighting conditions particularly facial recognition.

a. Cameras shall encompass all ingress and egress to the premises, fire exits and all
areas where the sale and supply of alcohol occurs.

b. Equipment must be maintained in good working order, be correctly time and date
stamped, recordings MUST be kept on the hard drive and kept for a period of 31
days and handed to Police upon reasonable request.

c. The premises licence holder must ensure at all times a DPS or appointed member
of staff is capable and competent at downloading CCTV footage in a recordable
format to the Police and Local Authority upon reasonable request.

d. In the event of technical failure of the CCTV equipment the premises licence
holder or DPS must report the failure to the Police Licensing Officer within 24 hours
unless the CCTV will be repaired before that time
(licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk)

26. All persons that sell or supply alcohol to customers must have licensing training.

a. Training should take place within six weeks of employment and any new
employees will be supervised until the training has taken place.

b. Refresher training should be repeated a minimum of every six months or earlier if
required due to changes of legislation.

c. Training records must be kept on the premises and shall contain the nature,
content and frequency of all training.

d. Records must be made available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing Officer
and authorised officers from the Local Authority upon request either electronically
or hard copy.

PC 12000 Chris Hill
PP. Ch. Supt Smith Date: 22" May 2018
North Division Area Commander

Page 127


mailto:licensing.north.division@kent.pnn.police.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



BOROUGH COUNCIL

&) Swale

Making Swale a Better Place

LICENSING AUTHORITY:
SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-committee Hearing Procedure

Applications for New Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates and Variations to existing

licences and certificates

Introductions

The Chairman will request all those persons participating in the hearing to identify
themselves or introduce them.

Members/Officers/Applicant and any representative/Responsible Authorities/any other
persons (objectors)

Procedural Matters

The Chairman will:

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Confirm that all parties are aware of the sub-committee hearing procedure and that
each party has a copy of the hearing procedure document.

Confirm that all sub-committee members have pre-read all the papers and any other
documents contained in the report regarding the hearing.

Explain that the sub-committee will allow all parties to put their case fully and make
full submissions, within a reasonable time frame. The procedure will be discussion
led by the Sub-Committee and questions will usually be permitted.

Explain that where any person attending the hearing behaves in a disruptive
manner, the sub-committee may direct that person to leave the hearing (including
temporarily). If this happens, the person may give the sub-committee in writing any

information which the person would have been entitled to give orally.

Enquire whether any draft conditions have been agreed between the applicant and
any of the other parties for the sub-committee to consider.

Enquire whether any parties request to have any witness give evidence at the
hearing; and if so grant the request unless the request is unreasonable.

Invite the parties, where appropriate, to appoint a spokesperson.

Page 129



The Hearing

A) The Chairman will ask the legal advisor or licensing officer to briefly outline the
application and all representations regarding the application.

B) i) Ask the Applicant (or their representative) to put forward their case
opening remarks and evidence (including witnesses).

ii) Allow appropriate questions from any Responsible Authority and/or other
person/members of the subcommittee

iii) Any points of clarification.

Q) i) Ask Responsible Authorities (where applicable) to put forward their case.
Opening remarks and evidence (including witnesses) by the officer
representing the responsible authority (or their representative).

ii) Allow appropriate questions from :
the Applicant/other Responsible Authorities/other persons/member of the
Sub-Committee.

iiii) Any points of clarification.

D) i) Opening remarks and evidence by the other person/s (or
spokesperson/representative).

ii) Allow appropriate questions from :
the Applicant, Responsible Authorities, each further other person and sub-
committee members.
iii) Any points of clarification.
E) Closing Summary
Responsible Authorities/Other Persons/The Applicant

F) End of Hearing

i) The Chairman will ask the members of the sub-committee if they have any
final questions for any party to the hearing.

ii) The Chairman will ask the legal advisor whether there are any further
matters to be raised or resolved before the hearing is closed.

iiii) The Chairman will bring the hearing to a close and shall declare that the sub-
committee will retire, to private session, to consider the application.

iv) The Chairman will invite the legal advisor to remain with the sub-committee
during its deliberations to provide any advice required.

Page 130



The Decision

The Chairman shall declare in public session:

i)

i)

The sub-committee’s determination and indicate that all parties to the
hearing will receive a copy of the written Determination Notice regarding the
sub-committee’s determination; and

that all parties may appeal against the sub-committee’s decision within 21
days beginning with the day on which the appellant is notified of the
Licensing Authority’s written determination. Appeals must be lodged with
the Magistrates’ Court. Parties should be aware that the Magistrates Court
may make an order with respect to costs on any appeal.

Formally close the meeting.

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F
	Appendix G
	Appendix H


